
DATE:
TIME:
PLACE

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

MEMBERS:

Mayor Charles Goodman
Council President Debra Jones
Vice-President Marguerite Robinson
Councilmember Michael Cox
Councilme mber Zach Bullo ck
Councilmember Elihu Ross

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

AGENDA

OTHERS:

TUESDAY, AUGUST 2,2022
6:00 P.M.
WILLISTON CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER

City Manager Jackie Gorman
City Attomey Scott Walker
City Clerk Laticia Wright
Attorney Kiersten Ballou
Dep. City Manager Deanna Nelson

OPENING PRAYER AND PLEDG OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

_ 1 - ADDITIONS DELE

- AWARD PRESENTATION
LAROCHE OF MYHREE MOTORS. MAY CHARLES GOODMAN. POLICE CHIEF

DETECTIVE OWEN

ITEM - 3 _ PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

ITEM - 4 - CONSENT AGENDA - (pp 4-8)
o Council minutes from July 19.2022

ITEM_5-OLDBUSINESS

A. STAFF AND BOARD AND COUNCIL UPDATES
o CITY MANAGER JACKIE GORMAN
o STAFF
o COUNCIL

ITEM_6-NEWBUSINESS-

A. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE ACTION: REVIEW OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON AUDIT FY 2020-2021. PURVIS GRAY. HELEN PAINTER.(pp 9-
102)

B. RESOLUTION 2022-49: A RESOL OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
APPROVING THE AMENDMENT TO THE

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC
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RTATION GRANT
NUMBER 442505.1 -94-23 REGARI)ING THE WILLISTON MUNICIPAL
AIRPORT _ AVIATION TERMINAL BUILDING; AUTHORIZING

PROPRIATE P

EXECT]TE SI]CH AMF,NDMF,NT ON REHALF OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON:
ING AN EFFECTIVE

STEGALL. (pp 103- 112)
C A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY IL

CITY OF
SOLID WASTE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR WASTE HAULING

CES BETWEEN THE
WASTE SOIJTHEAST. I,T,C.: AIITH G APPROPRIATE PARTIES TO

DOCUMENTS T
BEHALF OF THE CITY OF WII,T,IS : AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE

113- 11

D. RESOLUTION 2022-52: A ON OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON.
FLORIDA UPDATING COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 504 OF THE

ACT
SELF EVAI,IIATION PT,AN. A G A TRANSITION PLAN FOR

1

ACCESSIBILITY AND
PROCEDURE. CITY PLANNER LAURA JONES. (pp 118- 127)

OPEN PUBLIC HEARING

E. lST READING ORDINANCE 2022- AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY
COI]NCII, FOR THE CITY OF WTI,T, ISTON. FLORIDA. AMENDING THE CITY

TER TO CHANGE THE
CHANGE TERMS OF OFFTCE NECES SITATED BY SUCH CHANGE IN THE

D AMENDING S

CITY CHARTER: PROVIDING AN DATE. ATTORNEY KIERSTEN
2

BALLOU. ( pp 128 - 131)

CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING

F. DISC-I TSSIC)N WITI{ POSSIBLE ACTION: SETTING THE MILEAr}Il
COUNCIL PRESIDENT JONES.

ITEM-7_PI]BI,I PARTICIPATION

ITEM-8-ANN OUNCEMENTS

ITEM_9- ADJOURNMENT

NEXT SCHEDULED COUNCIL MEETING AUGUST 16.2022. AT 6:00 P.M.



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

NEW LINK: Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone

https ://v. ri nece nt r al.com / ioin / O 69 Ot7 97 6

Meeting lD: 06901-7976

One tap to join audio only from a smartphone:
+16504191505,, 069017976/# United States (San Mateo, CA)

Or dial

+1 (650)4191505 United States (San Mateo, CA)

Access Code / Meeting lD: 069017976

lnternational numbers available: https://v.ringcentral.com/teleconference

YouTube Li nk: https://www.youtube.com/channeVUCKtl468kcNjBS2AYgOaBsRQ

Clicking this link will enable you to see and hear the Council meeting

Council Meeting Procedures for members of the Public

1. All cell phones to be tumed off when entering the Council Chambers.
2. Once the audience has taken their seat and the meeting begins, there will be no talking between audience members

during the course of the Council meeting. If anyone continues to talk within the audience and is called down 3 times
during the course of the meeting, on the third time that person will be escorted out of the Council meeting;

3. The audience must be recognized by the President before being allowed to address the Council;
4. The member of the audience that is recognized will proceed to the podium, state their name for the benefit of the City

Clerk, prior to offering comments on a given matter.
5. The audience member will be limited to not more than 5 minutes to speak based on Resolution 2012-07;
6. There will be no personal attacks made by any member in the audience toward a sitting Council member and no

personal attacks made by any Council member toward a member of the audience;
7 . There will be no conversation between a member of the audience that has been recognized and any other member of the

audience when speaking while at the podium;
8. If an audience member wants to speak more than the allotted 5 minutes allowed then that person should make a request

to City Hall so that the item may be placed on the agenda.

Minutes of the City Council meeting may be obtained from the City Clerk's office. The minutes are recorded, but not transcribed
verbatim. Persons requiring a verbatim transcript may make arrangements with the City Clerk to duplicate the recordings, or
al'range to have a court reporter present at the meeting. The cost of duplication and/or court reporter will be bome by the
requesting party.
In accordance with Section 286.0105. Florida Statutes, notice is given that if aperson wishes to appeal a decision made by the
City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting they will need a record of the proceedings, and for such
pulpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence
upon which the appeal is based.

In accordance with Section 286.26. Florida Statutes. persons with disabilities needing special accommodations to participate in
this meeting should contact the Mayor through the City Clerk's office no later than 5:00 P.M. on the day prior to the meeting.



DATE:
TIME:
PLACE:

TUESDAY, JULY 19,2022
6:00 P.M.
WILLISTON CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER

CALL TO ORDER at 6:00 p.m

ROLL CALL

MEMBERS:

Mayor Charles Goodman
Council President Debra Jones
Vice-President Marguerite Robinson- absent
Councilmember Michael Cox
Counci lmemb er Zach Bullo ck
Councilmember Elihu Ross - absent

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

MINUTES

OTHERS:

City Manager Jackie Gorman
City Attorney Scott Walker - absent
City Clerk Laticia Wright
Attorney Kiersten Ballou
Dep. City Manager Deanna Nelson

OPENING PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG
Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance led by Mayor Goodman.

ONS DELETIONS CHANGES AND APPR AL THE
Council President Jones informed Council and audience that had Covid and not to get anyone
infected, she will be staying in the adjoining office and asked would any of the attending
Councilmember conduct the meeting. Both Councilmembers Bullock and Cox agreed that were
okay with her conducting the meeting in the adjoining room. Attomey Ballou confirmed there
was not an issue with Council President conducting the meeting from the adjoining room.
Motion by Councilmember Cox to approve agenda. Seconded by Councilmember Bullock.

S LESTER FOR
ACHTF,VTN G CERTIFICATION rs\ MAYOR CHARLES GOODMAN. Goodman
recognized Christy Richardson and Dallas Lester for receiving their Water, Gas and Sewer
licenses.

ITEM - 3 - PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - None

ITEM - 4 - CONSENT AGENDA - Motion to approve Consent Agenda by Councilmember
Cox. Seconded by Councilmember Bullock. Motion carried 3-0.

o Council minutes from July 5. 2022

ITEM_5-OLDBUSINESS

A. STAFF AND BOARD AND COUNCIL UPDATES
. CITY MANAGER JACKIE GORMAN - City Manager commented on letter from

Central Florida Community Action Agency, asking for an office space inside City
Hall.
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. STAFF - Fire Chief Stegall mentioned the Levy County Board of County
Commissioners, approved in their budget to pay the fire department a little over
$55,000 for services they render in the county.

o Police Chief Rolls announced the Police Department has purchased 4 ballistic shields
o COUNCIL - none
o CRA - Board member Art Konstantino reported work has begun on the pathway

located at Block 12.

B. RESOLUTION 2022-38: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF WILLISTON. FLORIDA. APPRO EXTENSION TO THE INTERLOCAL
AGREEMENT FOR THE SCHOOT, CR OSSING GUARDS FOR THE 2022-2023
SCHOOL YEAR AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. DEPUTY CITY
MANAGER DEANNA NELSON. - Motion by Councilmember Bullock to approve
Resolution 2022-38. Seconded by Councilmember Cox. Motion carried 3-0.

C. RESOLUTION 2022-44: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF WILLISTON. FLORIDA. ESTAB ING AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CITY
OF WILLISTON TO EXTEND THE CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL
CONSULTING SERVICES WITH -PIERCE: AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE. PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR DONALD BARBER AND
WALT NICKEL WRIGHT-PIERCE. Motion by Councilmember Cox to approve
Resolution 2022-44. Seconded by Councilmember Bullock. Motion carried 3-0.

OPEN PUBLIC HEARING 2ND READING OF ORDINANCE 2022.6982

D. 2ND READING: ORDINANCE 2 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORIDA; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND

ATIONS AMEND
r\r\T.TE r\E r\DTII\TAI\T.IEQ TTTT\,2 TTE T T TC.TNNI FT NP TT) A ADOPTING

CTIN AND PROVIDING FOR ELECTRI
RESOLUTION; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT: PROVIDING FOR

AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
SUPERVISOR DONALD BARBER AND JODY FINKLEA WITH FMPA AND
ATTORNEY BALLOU. - Motion to not move forward with Ordinance2022-698 and
rewrite Ordinance/Resolution to include two public hearings or a workshop if changing
rates by Resolution. Seconded by Councilmember Cox. Motion carried 3-0.

CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING

OPEN SECOND PIIRI,IC HEARING FOR 202I-2022 SMALL CITIES CDBG
PROGRAM APPLICATION.

ES. INC. DAVID FOX. FOXE. PRESENTATION BY FRED FOX
JONES. - Fred Fox presented the
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CDBG to Council and public. Mr. Fox went over the different areas that will benefit
from the CDBG Project.

F. OPEN PUBLIC HEARING FOR PUBLIC COMMENT - None

G. CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING

H. CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS. RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING THE CDBG
APPLICATION. Consensus of Council to move forward with the CDBG grant
application.

ITEM_6-NEWBUSINESS-

A UTION 2022-45: A RES
OF WILLISTON. FLORIDA. AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND

ION OF THE CDBG APPLICATION R
ENTERPRISES. INC. AND CITY PLANNER LAURA JONES. Motion to approve
Resolution 2022-45 by Councilmember Bullock. Seconded by Councilmember Cox.
Motion carried 3-0.

B. RESOLUTION 2022-46: A RESOL OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF WII,I,ISTON. FT,ORIDA. AIITH RIZING THE USE OF SIXTY-TWO

SEVENTY-FIVE DO
WILLISTON FUNDING AS LEVERAGE FOR THE SMALL CITIES
NEIGHBORHOOD REVITALIZATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK
GRANT
DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY FOR FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR
2O2T-22. DAVID FOX. FOX ENTERPRISES. INC. AND CITY PLANNER LAURA
JONES. Motion to approve Resolution 2022-46 by Councilmember Cox. Seconded by
Councilmember Bullock. Motion carried 3-0.

C. RESOL
OF WILLISTON,I'LORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE
LONG TERM AND SHORT-TERM OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FEDERAL. DAVID FOX, FOX
ENTERPRISES. INC. AND CITY PLANNER LAURA JONES. - Motion to approve
Resolution 2022-47 by Councilmember Bullock. Seconded by Councilmember Cox.
Motion carried 3-0.

D. RESOL
OF WILLISTON. LEVY COUNTY, FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING A REVISED RATE
AND FEE SCHEDULE FOR UTILITY: AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE. PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR DONALD BARBER, JODY
FINKLEA FMPA AND ELECTRIC UPERVISOR MICHAEL MILLER. - Motion by
Councilmember Bullock to not move forward with Resolution2022-36. Seconded by
Councilmember Cox. Motion carried 3-0.
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E. RESOLUTION 2022-39: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE AND EXECUTION OF
THE GRANT AWARDED BY FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF

REMOVE SAND AND GRIT FROM
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT. CITY PLANNER LAURA JONES. -Motion
to approve by Councilmember Cox. Seconded by Councilmember Bullock. Motion
carried 3-0.

F OLUTION 2022-40: A
OF WILLISTON. FLORIDA. APPROVING THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
CITY OF WILLISTON COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY AND
OELRICH
THE APPROPRIATE PARTIES TO SIGN ANY DOCUMENTS REOUIRED TO
EXECUTE SUCH AGREEMENT ON OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY REPEALING ALL RESOLUTIONS IN
CONFLICT: AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. CITY PLANNER LAURA
JONES. - Motion to approve Resolution 2022-40 by Councilmember Bullock. Seconded
by Councilmember Cox. Motion carried 3-0.

G UTION 2022-47: A RESOLUTION OF THE IL
OF WILLISTON. FLORIDA ESTABLISHING A REVISED CUSTOMER SERVICE
AGREEMENT AND BILLING SERVICES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE. PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR DONALD BARBER AND CUSTOMER
SERVICE AND BILLING SUPERVISOR SELINA LEAVY. Motion to approve
Resolution 2022-41by Councilmember Bullock. Seconded by Councilmember Cox.
Motion carried 3-0.

H. RESOLUTION 2022-42: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON, LEVY
COUNTY. FLORIDA. ESTABLISHING AUTHORIZATION FOR CITY OF
WILLISTON WELL NUMBER TWO EMERGENCY REPAIR; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE. PUBLIC SUPERVISOR DONALD BARBER. - Motion
to approve Resolution 2022-42 by Councilmember Cox. Seconded by Councilmember
Bullock. Motion carried 3-0.

I. RESOLUTION 2022-48: A RESOLIITI OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
QF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING AN EMERGENCY AGREEMENT
WITH V.E. WHITEHURST & SONS. C. TO REPAIR ROADWAY DAMAGE
LqCATED ON EAST NOBLE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. PUBLIC
WORKS DIRECTOR JONATHEN BISHOP AND PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR
DONALD BARBER. - Motion to approve Resolution 2022-48 by Councilmember Cox.
Seconded by Councilmember Bullock. Motion carried 3-0.

ITEM-7_PI]B PARTICIPATION - None

ITEM - 8 - ANNOUNCEMENTS - Mayor Goodman commented his opinion is this meeting
should have never taken place and he's entering a formal protest into record because the Council
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President was in a separate room. Attorney Ballou commented that she stands by her previous
decision, the city had a quorum to conduct tonight's meeting.

ITEM - 9 - ADJOURNMENT - Motion to adjourn at 8:51 p.m.by Councilmember Cox.
Seconded by Councilmember Bullock. Motion carried.

COUNCIL MEETING AUGUST AT P



Date: 0810212022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: City of Williston -2020-2021 Audit

PREPARED BY: Helen Painter with Purvis & Gray

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION: On August2,2022, Helen Painter for Purvis Gray will
present:

1) Fiscal Year 2020-2021 COW Audit
2) Fiscal Year 2020-2021COW CRA Audit

Attached you will find both the City of Williston FY 2020-2021Audit with the Final SASII4
as well as the City of Williston FY 2020-2021 CRA Audit with its SAS114.

LEGAL REVIEW: N/A

FISCAL IMPACTS: No

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve

ATTACHMENTS: 2020-2021 Fiscal Year Audit

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED



PURVIS GRAY

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Williston, Florida (the City) for
the year ended September 30,2027. Professional standards require that we provide you with information
about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards
and the Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our
audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated September 24, 2O2'J,.

Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our
audit.

Sienificant Audit Matters

Qualitotive Aspects of Accounting Proctices
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. Except for the
adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities,
which created no significant changes to the current method of reporting fiduciary activities (pension
funds) for the City, no new accounting policies were adopted, and the application of existing policies was
not changed during the year ending September 30,2021..

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

Estimation of the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts-Management's estimate for the allowance for
doubtful accounts is based on historical collection rates and an analysis of the collectability of
individ ual receivables.

Useful Lives of Assefs-Management's estimate of the useful lives of assets is based upon known
historical facts and industry standards for similar assets.

t Pension Actuoriol Methods and Assumptions-Management's estimates are based upon risk and
market factors affecting governmental entities of similar sizes and employee census information.
Management uses the assistance of an actuary hired by the City to project estimated contributions.
This information includes the net pension liability (asset), deferred inflows, and outflows of resources.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Gairrcsvi//cIOc'a/a|7hllaias,sceISa&r.sotaIL)rlndoIl.akclanrlITarrrl,,r

purvisgray.com

\L'rnbcrs ol Arttr'ricar arttl !loridir lrlstilulcs ol (:erlilied I)u[rlic .\diout]tar]ts

r\n lttdepc'nrlent lllcntbe r ol thc lllX) Allianec USA
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

r FRS Pension Actuarial Methods and Assumptions-As a participating employer in the Florida
Retirement System (FRS), the City has recorded its share of the FRS net pension liability and related
deferred outflows/inflows on its statement of net position. These numbers are estimates based on
assumptions embedded in the employer allocations. lf these assumptions were changed, the
reported amounts could be significantly affected. ln addition, because the FRS operates on a fiscal
year ended June 30, there is a difference between the measurement date of these numbers (June 30,
2021) and the reporting date (September 30, 2021).

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Actuarial Methods ond Assumptions-The unfunded accrued
actuarial liability and deferred inflows/outflows for OPEB is determined based on employee census
data and assumptions based on industry trends. Management uses the assistance of an actuary hired
by the City to project estimated contributions. There are significant underlying assumptions in the
actuarial report which, if changed, would affect the reported amounts.

t Compensated Absences-Management utilizes assumptions to best estimate the value of the balance
for employee vacation and sick time available at year-end.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining that it is

reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear,

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit except that the audit fieldwork was delayed due to staffing turnover in the Finance Department.

Corrected ond U ncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. There were no material corrected, or uncorrected misstatements noted.

Di sa g ree me nts with M o nage me nt
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit.

M ona ge me nt Re pre se ntotio n s

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated June 30,2022.

2



Honorable Mayor and City Council

City of Williston
Williston, Florida

Management Consultotions with Other lndependent Accountdnts
ln some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. lf a consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to the City's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge,
there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or lssues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City's auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship, and our responses were not a

condition to our retention.

The following are audit matters that we would like to bring to the attention of the Mayor, City Council,
and management of the City:

Upcoming New Accounting Standard
r GASB has issued GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, with an effective date for reporting periods

beginning after June 15,202t (fiscal year ending Septem ber 30, 2022). The objective of this Statement
is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and
financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of
governments' financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for
leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources, or
outflows of resources, based on the payment provisions of the contract. lt establishes a single model
for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right-to-use
an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an

intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a

deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about
governments' leasing activities.

Other Auditorr's Comments

Building Department
During our review of the Building Department revenues and expenditures, we observed the department
has had several years of losses, wherein the fees assessed for building permits were not enough to cover
the costs of the department. Upon further review of permitting fees, a system calculation issue was noted
for rates of certain permits. We recommend management review their permitting software to ensure
fees are being assessed appropriately and, if necessary, create mitigating controls to test that building
permits rates are being charged based on existing ordinances. Additionally, we recommend management
review costs associated within the department to ensure fees are set to cover the costs of operating the
department.

3



Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

Information Technology (lT General Controls)
Our review of the lT General Controls is ongoing as the City recently hired an internal employee to manage
the City's lT structure and governance. As the process is ongoing, we will assist management with
recommendations, as necessary.

CRA Matter-The Auditor General Compliance Supplement, Section l-63.387(6xb), Florida Statutes,
requires the Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) Board of Directors to provide the adopted budget
to the county which the CRA is located within L0 days of adoption. The adopted budget and amendments
were provided to the county during the year, but not within the required L0 days of adoption. We
recommend that the City develop a process after the adoption of the CRA budget that is then timely sent
to the county. We commented on this in the CRA's separately issued report and management has issued

a response to the recommendation.

Procurement Policy Update-The City's procurement policy needs to be updated with new specifications
to address Federal regulations and guidelines. This is particularly needed for procuring of services needed
to ensure compliance with projects related to Federal grants.

Other Matters
We applied certain limited procedures to the Management Discussion and Analysis, Retirement Plans'

Schedules, and Other Postemployment Benefits Schedules, which are required supplementary
information (RSl) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries
of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and

do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSl.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Honorable Mayor, City Council, and
management of the City and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Qr*otQ ,ry
June3O,2O22
Ocala, Florida
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PURVIS GRAY

INDEPEN DENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Williston (the City)
as of and for the year ended September 30,2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standords, issued by the
ComptrollerGeneral oftheUnitedStates. Thosestandardsrequirethatweplanandperformtheauditto
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but notforthe purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluatingthe overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions
ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of September 30, 202I, and the respective changes in

financial position, and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, the Airport Development
and Community Redevelopment Special Revenue Funds and, where applicable, cash flows, thereof, for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
(iaint'.svi//c' l Ocala l 7)/laha.ss.'c l Sarirsr.rfa l Or/alrlo l lakc/;rnrl l tirrlpa

purvisgray.com
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Other Matters
Requi red Su p plem e nta ry I nformdtion
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, Pension Plans'Schedules, and Other Postemployment Benefits Schedules, as listed
in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence
to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other lnformotion
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is

presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulotions
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federol
Awords, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. ln our opinion,
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
ln accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 30,2022,
on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an

integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Goyern ment Auditing Standards in considering the
City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Qur,wr'Qr^T
June 3O,2022

2

Ocala, Florida



ctTY oF wtLUsToN, FLORTDA

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2I

The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to the City of Williston,
Florida's (the City) basic financial statements. lt also provides assistance to the readers by focusing on
significant financial issues, providing an overview of the City's financial activities, and identifying the City's
ability to meet future challenges; it assists in identifying significant deviations from the financial plan and

addresses any individual fund issues or concerns. Since the MD&A is designed to focus on the current
year's activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, it should be read in conjunction with the
City's financial statements (beginning on page 1-8). Please note the City provides prior year comparative
financial information as required by GovernmentalAccounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34.

As management of the City, we offer readers of the City's annual financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of financial activities of the City for fiscal year ended September 30,202L. All
amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

r The City's net position exceeded its liabilities at the close of the current fiscal year by 525,93I,206.

r The City's total net position increased by 5124,997 for the current fiscal year. Governmental activities
assets decreased by 5358,046 and business-type activities increased by 5477,945 for the fiscal year.

The City's governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of 51,353,034. The non-
spendable portion of the fund balance totaled 555,090 and the restricted portion totaled 5698,031.
Approximately 44% of the ending fund balance, 5599,913, is available for spending at the City's

discretion (unassigned fund balance).

The City maintains two single employer defined benefit plans that separately cover full-time police

officers and all other general employees. The net change in the fiduciary fund's assets was an increase
of 57,22L,LO4 from the prior year.

The City's total long-term debt decreased by 51,018,291 or approximately 3L% during the current
fiscal year. The decrease was the result of principal payments as well as a net reduction in the City's
total compensated absences and other special benefits.

r The City's total net position of 525,931.,206 is divided into the following classifications:

Net lnvestment in Capital Assets in the amount of 521,387,653. This includes land, buildings,
improvements, and equipment less accumulated depreciation and any outstanding debt that is

related to the purchase or construction ofthose assets.

o Restricted Net Position of 51,9L0,56L for specific use in law enforcement, local option gas tax,
building department, airport operations, net pension asset and the community redevelopment
expenditures.

o Unrestricted Net Position in the amount of S2,632,992 are available for the City to meet the
ongoing activities and obligations to citizens and creditors.

I

o
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CIW OF WILLISTON, FTORIDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANATYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2021

Overview of the Financial Statements

The MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The City's basic
financial statements are comprised of: 1) government-wide financial statements; 2) fund financial
statements; and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. For the fiscal year ended September
30,2O2L, the City has prepared the financial statements based on the guidelines provided in the GASB

Statement No.34 reporting model illustrated below:

Management's
Discussion and

Analysis

+

Required
Supplementary

lnformation

+

G ove rn me nt-Wid e F i na ncia I State m e nts

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
City's finances as a whole. This broad overview is similar to the financial reporting of private-sector
businesses. The government-wide financial statements have separate columns for governmental
activities and business-type activities. Governmental activities are primarily supported by taxes, charges
for services and grants, while business-type activities are self-supporting through user fees and charges.

The stotement of net position presents information on all the City's assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating.

r The statement of activities presents information on how the City's net position changed during the
fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of reloted cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenditures are
reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. (e.9.,

uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions within the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activitiesl from other functions that
are intended to recover all or in part a portion of these costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activitiesl. Governmental activities include, among other things, general government (city council,
finance, and administration), public safety (police and fire control), public works (streets and sidewalks),
culture, and recreation. Business activities include electric, gas, water, sewer, and sanitation utilities. The
government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 18 and L9 of this report.

Basic Financial Statements
A. Government-Wide

B. Fund Financials

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
0
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FTORIDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANATYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2021

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that are used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. All of the funds in the City can
be divided into governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

This fund is used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmentol activitiesinthe
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows (revenues) and outflows (expenditures

of spendable resources), as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. The government-wide financial statements include both near-term and long-term inflows (revenues)

and outflows (expenditures/, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
fiscal year. lnformation in the governmental funds may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term
financing requirements.

The focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements. lt is

useful to compare the information presented in the governmentol funds with similar information presented
for governmentol octivities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the City's nedr-term financial decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
gove rn me nta I octivities.

The City maintains three (3) individual governmental funds. lnformation is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance for the generalfund, airport development special revenue fund, and community
redevelopment special revenue fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. The basic
governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 20through 26 of this report.

Proprietory Funds

The City maintains one type of proprietary fund, which is the enterprise fund, used to report the same

functions presented as business-type octivities in the government-wide financial statements. The City
uses enterprise funds to separately account for its utility activities. Business-type activities charge a fee
for the specific goods or services provided to customers. The basic proprietary fund financial statements
can be found on pages2T through 29 ofthis report.

Fiduciary Funds

This fund accounts for resources held in a trustee capacity or as an agent for parties outside of the
government. Fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide financial statements because their
resources or assets are not available to support the City's activities. The City has two fiduciary fund-type
pension trusts for its pension funds. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used in
proprietary funds. The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 30 and 31. of this
report.

5



ctTY oF wtLLtsToN, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2L

Notes to the Financial Stotements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is important in order to gain a

full understanding of the data in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes are
located immediately following the basic financial statements on pages 32 through 64 of this report.

Other lnformation

ln addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the City's progress in funding its obligation to provide
pension and other postemployment benefits to its general employees and police officers. Required
supplementary information can be found on pages 65 through 71 of this report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, the statement of net position on the following page may serve over time as a useful
indicator of the City's financial position. The City's net position exceeded liabilities by 525,931,32O6 at
the close of the fiscal year ended September 30,2O2I, resulting in an increase in net position of S119,899,
or approximately .5% more than the prior year total of 525,811,307.

Byfar, the largest portion of the City's net position is reflected in its investment in capital assets such as

land, buildings, improvements, and equipment, less any debt used to acquire those assets that are still
outstanding, which totals 521,387,553, or approximately 82% of the overall net position mentioned
above. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are
not available for future spending. Although, the City's investment in capital assets is reported net of
related outstanding debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.

The restricted net position are resources subject to external restrictions on how they may be used and
represent 51,910,551, or approximately 7% of total net position. Restricted Net Position increased by

57,474,222, or approximately 339%, from the prior year. The remaining balance of 52,632,992 is

unrestricted and may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to its citizens, customers, and

creditors.

The statement of net position on the following page illustrates the increases or decreases in net position
from the prior fiscal year both for governmental-type and business-type activities.

6



ctTY oF wtLUsToN, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANATYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2L

Statement of Net Position
September 30,2O2t

Governmental
Activities

2020 202L

Business-Type

Activities Total
2020 202L 2020 202L

Current and other assets

Prepaids and other
Capital assets, net of

accumulated depreciation
Total assets

Deferred Outflows - OPEB

Deferred Outflows - Pension

Total Deferred Outflows
of Resoulces

Long-term liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred lnflows - OPEB

Deferred lnflows - Pension

Total Deferred lnflows
of Resources

Net assets:

Net lnvestment in

Capital Assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total net assets

S 2,616,341 S

416,5I3
4,!17,20t 5

4L6,452
6,733,542 s

892,965

1,523,355 s
L,343,723

4,260,524 5

9t9,076
5,783,879

2,262,799

73,421,565 L4,O29,274 8,259,696 8,773,649 27,68L,267 22,aO2,923

16,514,419 16,895,352 L2,793,?49 L3,953,249 29,307,768 30,849,601

50,118

r,282,563
105,598

840,670

34,239

299,720

65,023

226,4\8
84,357

r,582,283
r70,621

1,057,088

L,3t2,68L 946,268 333,959 29t,44L L,666,640 t,237,709

1,750,391

316,I24
759,528
237,879

7,384,894

902,963

L,352,296

r,L88,97I
3,135,285

r,2L9,O87

2,rlL,824
L,425,790

2,O66,5L5 997,347 2,2A7,a57 2,541,267 4,354,?72 3,538,514

63,236 142,252 42,92t
409,415 L,753,733 293,L57

78,931

643,174

to6,!57
702,572

22t,t83
2,396,307

472,651 1,895,385 335,078 722,tO5 808,729 2,6t7,490

14,644,542

436,339

187,053

13,800,350

1,422,0L6

1272,478)

7,058,586

3,444,787

7,587,303

493,643

2,900,372

2L,743,L24
435,339

3,631,840

2L,387,653

1,91s,6s9

2,627,894

s 1s,307,934 s 14,e4s,888 $ 10,s03,373 s 10,981,318 5 2',e'I3o7 s 2s,e31,205

Normal lmpacts

There are six basic transactions that will affect the comparability of the Statement of Net Position
summary presentation.

t. Net results of activities will impact (increase/decrease current assets and unrestricted net position).

2. Borrowing of capital will increase current assets and long-term debt.

3. Spending borrowed proceeds on new capital will reduce current assets and increase capital assets.
There is a second impact, an increase in invested capital assets, and an increase in related net debt
will not change the invested in capital assets, net of debt.

4. Spending of non-borrowed current assets on new capital will reduce current assets, increase capital
assets, reduce unrestricted net position, and increase invested in capital assets, net of debt.

5. Principal payment of debt will reduce current assets and reduce long-term debt, reduce unrestricted
net position, and increase invested in capital assets, net of debt.

6. Reduction of capital assets through depreciation will reduce capital assets and invested in capital
assets, net of debt.

7



ctTY oF wtLusToN, FtoRtDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2t

Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended September 30,2O2l

Governmental
Activities

2020 202L

Business-Type
Activities

2020 2021

Total

2020 2021
Revenues

Program revenues:

Charges for services

Capital grants & contributions

General revenues:

Property taxes

Public service tax
Other taxes

Other

Total revenues

Expenses

General government

Law enforcement
Fire control
Streets and sidewalks

Parks and recreation
Community redevelopment
Animal control
Airport operations & development
lnterest on long-term debt
Utility
Non Departmental

Total expenses

lncrease / (Decreasel in net
position before transfers:

Transfers

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

S 1,3s4,811 S 1,s4s,498

138,151 t28,OO7

S s,ssz,grz
196,955

S s,s38,198

9t2,223
S 6,912,128

335,107
s 7,383,696

1,040,230

851,451

358,562

455,831

782,342

855,234

368,921
469,537

r,o37,or4

851,4s1

358,562

455,831

785,090

855,234

368,921

469,537

r,o75,3932,748 38,379

3,941,148 4,704,211 5,757,O21 6,488,800 9,698,169 11,193,011

666,100

r,589,794
802,046

373,484

65,165

t27,O94

67,O3r

2,772,682

1,650

6,343

743,Ot2

984,983

833,323

473,Ogt

89,742
131,608

63,40L

2,535,304

1,088

666,100

1,589,794

802,046

373,484

65,165

r2t,o94
67,031

2,tt2,682
1,650

5,234,99L

6,343

743,Ot2
984,983

833,323

473,O9r

89,742

131,608

63,401

2,535,304

1,088

5,210,855

6,705
5,234,991 5,210,855

6,705

15,862,2571 (s,234,9911 (s,210,8ss1 111,105,3801 ltt,o73,tt2l

lr,930,24rl (1,1s8,046) s22,o3o t,277,94s (1,408,21u 11e,8se

890,000 800,000 (890,000) (800,000)

(7,O4O,2411

76,348,r75

(358,046)

15,307,934

'367,9701

r0,87r,343

477,945

10,503,373

lr,4o8,21rl

27,279,578

119,899

25,8tt,307
s 934 S 14,949,889 s s $ 2s,811,307 $ 2s,931,206

The statement shown above illustrates the increase or decrease in net position for the City resulting from
its operating activities.

8



ctTY oF wtLLtsToN, FLORTDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2t

Governmental Activities

As shown on the previous page, the City's total net position for governmental activities decreased by

5358,046 for the current fiscal year. Key elements of these changes are as follows:

Revenues

Overall, the total revenue for governmental activities increased by 5753,063 compared to the prior fiscal
year. The activity was as follows:

Charges for services increased by 5490,687, or approximately 35%o, from the prior fiscal year-end. The

increase was primarily the result of higher fuel sales at the Airport as well as timber sales which did not
occur in the prior year.

Capital grants and contributions decreased by SIO,I44 or approxim ately 7%o, compared to the prior fiscal
year. The decrease was the result of less grant-funded projects at the Airport in comparison to the prior
fiscal year.

The general revenues increased by 5282,520 compared to the prior year primarily because of land sold
during the year as well as a slight increase in property taxes, public service taxes, other taxes, and
miscellaneous revenues.

The following chart shows the percentage each revenue source represents within the City as a whole. The
percentages may not equate to 100 percent due to rounding.

Governmental Revenues By Source - 2O2L

70.0%
22.Oo/o

7.8%

L8.2% 39.2%
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CITY OF WI[[ISTON, FTORIDA

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2l

Expenses

The City's governmental expenses decreased to 55,862,257, a 59,132 or .2% decrease from the previous
fiscal year's total of S5,871,389. The decrease includes a reduction in law enforcement expenses and was
offset by increases in fuel purchase at the airport.

The following illustration shows the percentage each functional area represents within the City as a whole.
The percentages may not equate to 100 percent due to rounding.

Governmental Activities Expenses BV Function - 2021

0.10/6 12.7% 16.8% I Non Departmental

I General government

F Law Enforcement

r Fire Control

! Streets & Sidewalks

fr Animal Control

# Parks & Recreation

v Community Development

Airport Oper & Development

B lnterest on long-term debt

0.0%

43 14.2%

L5% 1.r%

The bar chart on the next page compares governmental activity expenses against program revenues that
each department generates, without any associated general revenues such as property, franchise, public
service and telecommunication taxes, as well as interest and other miscellaneous income.
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ctw oF wtLLtsToN, FLoRtDA
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2L

Governmental Activities Expenses & Program Revenues - 2021

IRevenues lExpenses

lnterest on long-term debt
Non Departmental

Airport Oper & Development

Community Development

Parks & Recreation

Animal Control

Streets & Sidewalks

Fire Control

Law Enforcement

General government

500,000 1,000,000 L,500,000 2,000,000 2,500,000 3,000,000

Business-Type Activities

Business-type activities increased the City's net position by 5477,945 from the previous fiscalyear-end.
The increase in the City's net position was primarily the result of approximately 5912,223 in grant and
contribution revenue. Other contributing factors are discussed below.

Revenues

Overall, total revenue for business-type activities increased by 573L,779 compared to the prior fiscal year.

The increase was primarily the result of grant revenue as well as increases in gas and sewer utility billings,
infrastructure reimbursements and fixed asset sales. These increases were offset by decreases in
electricity and solid waste utility billings.

The activity for the fiscal year was as follows: charges for services decreased by S19,119, capital grants
and contributions increased by 5715,267, and other revenues and interest increased by 535,63L from the
prior fiscal year. The chart below illustrates the breakdown as a percentage of total revenues by each

source for the City's business-type activities.

Business-type Activities Revenues By Source - 2021

14.lo/o

0.6%

r Charges for services

f Capital Grants and Contributions

I Other Revenue

T
t

!

!
!

85.4%
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CIW OF WIILISTON, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2l

Business-type activity expenses decreased by S24,136 from the prior fiscal year-end. The decrease was
the result of lower electricity purchases related to utility billing services as well as a decrease in personal

services, depreciation expenses, professional services, and materials & supplies. These decreases were
offset by an increase in capital projects and gas purchases related to utility billing services.

The bar chart shown below compares expenses and program revenues for the current fiscal year and the
previous one, to illustrate how business-type activities support themselves without the aid of general
revenues such as interest earnings and before any transfers are made to governmental funds.

Business-type Activities Expenses And Program Revenues
202L

7,000,000

6,000,000

5,000,000

4,000,000

3,000,000

2,000,000

1,000,000

I Expenses

I Revenues

20zt 2020

Fund Financial Analysis

The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal

requirements.

Governmentol Funds

The primary function of the City's governmental funds is to report on neor-term revenues (inflows),
expenditures (outflows) and balance of spendable resources. This information is useful in assessing the
government's financial requirements in the near future. ln particular, fund balance is a good indicator of
the City's net resources that are available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. At the end of the
current fiscal year the City's combined ending governmental fund balance was SL,353,034. The fund
balance in the general fund was 5690,336. The fund balance in the two special revenue funds was a

combined ending balance of 5662,698. The City ended the current fiscal year with an overall increase in

its combined fund balance of 5479,398 as compared to the prior year end balance of 5873,635.

The City has three major governmental funds as shown below. The following pages illustrate the net
change in fund balance for each of the three funds for the fiscal year.

Mojor Funds

r General Fund

r Special Revenue Fund - Airport Development
r Special Revenue Fund - Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA)
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANATYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2l

The general fund is the main operating fund for the City and is shown below. The fund balance after
transfers increased by S186,361 for the fiscal year, as compared to an increase of 52,085 in the previous

fiscal year, a net increase in 2021, of 5L79,276.

General Fund

2020 202L lncr. / (Decr.)

Revenues

Taxes

Licenses and permits
lntergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
lnterest Earnings
Other

Total revenues 2,389,23L 2,607,954 2L8,723

s t,647,438 s
95,223

605,O76

26,955
772

13,827

1,666,030 s
t29,409
763,499

16,400

489

32,127

18,592
34,186

L58,423
(10,555)

{.223l,
18,300

Expenditures
Cu rrent:

General Government
Law enforcement
Communications
Roads & Streets

Fire Control
Parks and recreation
Library

Planning and zoning
Legislative and legal
Animal Control
Non-departmenta I

Capital Outlay
Debt Service:

Principa I

lnterest
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in

Transfers out
Sale of capital assets

Total other financing

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end ofyear

297,978
t,728,224

24O,3r3
292,397
670,347

2,763
6,344

163,495

45,621
58,342

5,883
239,403

338,792
1,I77,526

247,693
366,303

634,685
23,328

6,437

L82,707
54,868

53,847

5,675
115,038

40,874
49,302
7,380

73,9r2
(3s,6s6)
20,555

93

79,272
9,247

14,4ss)
(208)

lt24,36sl

2r,730
1,650

22,292
1,088

563
(s62)

(3,174,4781 13,230,2791 (55,802)

(785,2471 (622,3251 1.62,922

890,000
(97,668)

800,000
(tLz,4641

tzL,t50

(90,000)

(14,7961

tzt,tso
808,686

186,361

503,975

s 503,975 s 590,336

792,332

7,O85

496,890

L6,354

179,276

13



ctTY oF wtLLtsToN, FLORTDA

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2t

The special revenue fund - airport development is another operating fund of the City. The fund balance
increased by 5173,855 for the current fiscal year, as compared to an increase of 52,340 in the previous
year, a net increase in 2O2I of S171,525 as illustrated below:

Special Revenue Fund

Airport Development

2020 2O2l lncr. / lDecr.)
Revenues

I ntergovernmenta I

lnterest Earnings

Rental lncome

Timber and Hay Sales

Fuel Sales

Other

Total revenues

Expenditures

Current:

Airport Development

Capital Outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning ofyear

Fund balances, end of year

425,750

(1,390,865) (1,64s,091) 1254,2251

2,340 173,855 77t,525

77I,525

$ ra,gfl S 192,776

s 131,923 s
461

338,L20

L,628

906,98s
14,089

II4,802 s
276

338,710

L93,862

L,t57,9L4
t3,392

(r7,1211

(18s)

590

t92,234
250,929

(6s71

1.393.206

1,259,168

131,698

7,487,449

163,642

222,287

3L,944

2,340

76,57t

173,865

18,911
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clTY oF wtLLtsToN, FLORTDA

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2t

The community redevelopment fund is another special revenue fund the City includes in its statements
as illustrated below. The fund balance after transfers associated with this fund increased by S119,172 for
the current fiscal year-end, as compared to an increase of 526,I27 in the prior year, a net increase in 2O2L
of 593,045. The fund was established to account for the Community Redevelopment Agency's (CRA)

activities. The CRA's sole purpose is eliminating and preventing the development of slum and blighted
areas within the community in order to serve the interest of the citizens.

Special Revenue Fund

Community Redevelopment

2020 2021 lno. / (Decr.l

Revenues

Taxes

lnterest Earnings

Miscellaneous Revenue

Total revenues
Expenditures

Community Redevelopment

Capital Outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

138,118 155,151 18,033

{20e,6se) lL4s,443l 60,216

17t,s4tl 6,708 78,249

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in

Total Other financing
97,558 t72,464 74,796

97,668 112,464 14,796

s 135,226 s
I42

2,750

155,727 s
130

300

20,495
(12)

(2,4sol

72,t72
737,487

77,599

77,844
5,427

(6s,643)

93,045

$ 350,750 $ 469,922

The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance for all illustrations shown on the
previous pages 13 through 15 are provided on page 22 ofthis report.

Proprietory Funds

The City's proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide financial statements, but in more detail. Unrestricted net position of the business-type activities
totaled 52,905,470 which was SSgg,gtZ or approximately t6% less than the prior year. The remaining
balance was made up of $488,545 which was restricted for the net pension asset and 57,587,303 being
invested in capital assets net of any related debt.

The City's total net position for business-type activities increased by 5477 ,945 from the prior fiscal year-
end. Key elements of the decrease have been addressed in the discussion of the City's business-type
activities found on pages 11 and72 of this report.

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

26,t27

324,523

1t9,t72

350,750

15



ctTY oF wtLLtsToN, FLORTDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2L

Generol Fund Budgetary Highlights with Voriances

Overall, the general fund ended the current fiscal year with a positive variance between its final operating
revenues budgeted and actual operating revenues in the amount of 5154,494. This was mainly due to an

increase in taxes, licenses, permits and fees, as well as intergovernmental revenues,

The general fund experienced a positive variance between its final operating expenditures budget and
actual operating expenditures in the amount of S114,555. The positive variance was largely the result of
less spending on law enforcement, communications, and capital outlay than was anticipated in the
budget. These variances were offset by increased spending in general government, fire & animal control,
street & sidewalks, planning & zoning, legal and parks & recreation.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
September 30,2O2L, amounts to S22,802,923 (net of accumulated depreciation) as compared to the prior
year-end total of 523,174,86I as shown below. The investment in capital assets includes land, buildings,
utility distribution systems, improvements, machinery and equipment, streets, roads, and construction in
progress. The total decrease in capital assets for the current fiscal year was S37l-,938 or 7.6%.

Governmental activities decreased by S8AS,Agt and the business-type activities increased by 55t3,953 as

illustrated below. The decrease in governmental activities assets was primarily the result of depreciation
recorded in the current fiscal year offset by additions in equipment and building & improvements. The
increase in business-type activities was primarily the result of construction projects in progress offset by
depreciation recorded in the current fiscal year.

Capital Assets - Net of depreciation
(in thousands)

TotalGovernmental
Activities

2020 20'2t

Business-Type
Activities

2020 2021 2020 2021
Land

Construction ln Progress

Buildings and lmprovements
Plant and Distribution Systems

Machinery and Equipment
Total Capital Assets, Net

S1,s09,23s
750,274

71,a89,794

S1,47s,23s
150,274

11,t95,972

S133,966
188,055

S133,9b6
7,r79,973

s1,643,201
338,329

17,849,794
6,816,690

$1,60s,201
1,330,247

t7,!95,972
6,425,6095,816,590 6,425,609

7,365,862 r,207,793 1,t20,985 1,034,701 2,486,847 2,247,894

s14,915,165 574,029,274 s8,259,696 58,773,649 s23,L74,867 s22,802,923

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 4 starting on page 42 of this report.
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ctTY oF wtLUsToN, FtoRtDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2t

Debt Administration

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had a total long-term debt balance of S2,235,591. Of that
amount, 51,049,785 is comprised of general obligation debt and backed by the credit of the government.
The remaining $1,tS5,806 represents notes secured solely by specific revenue sources. Governmental
activities account for S8t8,903 while business-type activities account for 51,416,688 of the overall debt
as shown below.

Long-Term Debt
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds

Governmental
Activities

2020 202t

Fire Vehicle
Compensated Absences & Other
Total Governmental Activities

City Hall

Compensated Absences & Other
Total Business-Type Activities

s1,805,200 s818,903

Business-Type
Activities

2020 2021

Ss3,141
1,753,059

S3o,84s
788,054

7,zot,lt0
246,572

1,\54,957
26L,73r

5t,447,682 51,416,688

Total Outstanding Debt $3,2s3,8S2 $Z,ZSS,Sgr

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 5 on pages 44 through 45 of this
report.

Request for lnformation

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances. Questions concerning
any of the information provided in this report or request for additional financial information should be

addressed to the City Manager or Finance Director, at 50 N.W. Main Street, Williston, Florida 32695.

t7
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FTORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2L

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type

Activities Total
Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

lnvestments - Certificates of Deposit
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Restricted
Receivables (Net of Allowance for

U ncollectable Accou nts)
Due from Other Governments
lnterfund Balances
I nventories
Prepaid ltems
Net Pension Asset

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Capital Assets Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Total Assets

Deferred Outflow of Resources

Deferred Outflow - OPEB Related
Deferred Outflow - Pension Related

Total Deferred Outflow of Resources
Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources

Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Customer Deposits

Power Costs Recovered in Advance
Liabilities:

Due Within One Year

Due in More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

Deferred lnflow of Resources

Deferred lnflow - OPEB Related
Deferred lnflow - Pension Related

Total Deferred lnflow of Resources

Total liabilities and Deferred lnflow of Resources

Net Position
Net lnvestment in Capital Assets

Restricted for:
Law Enforcement
Community Redevelopment
Building Department
Local Option Gas Tax

Airport Operations
Net Pension Asset

U nrestricted
Total Net Position

s 1,207,472 S r,zrs,sos
87,130

292,4O0

1,003,507

714,418
198,07s

249,429
73,775

905,301

1,313,939

7,459,770

2,916,977

87,130
292,400

1,193,893

997,084

296,395
2r,899

2,240,900
2,939,448

79,863,475

s

190,385

282,666
(198,07s)

46,966

8,724
1,335,s99

1,62s,s09
72,403,765

76,896,352 73,953,249 30,849,601

105,598

840,670

65,023

226,4r8
770,627

1,067,088

946,268 297,447 7,237,709

77,842,620 14,244,690 32,087,3IO

L78,444

59,375

759,528

753,923
292,400
78,256

64,392
7,352,296

932,367

292,400
78,256

123,767

2,717,824

997,347 2,547,267 3,538,6L4

L42,252
r,753,r33

78,937
543,r74

22r,r83
2,396,307

1,895,38s 722,705 2,617,490
2,892,732 3,263,372 6,756,104

13,800,350 7,587,303 21,387,653

1,598

469,922
2,585

81,406

142,520

723,985
(272,478l|

488,545

2,905,470

1,598

469,922

2,585

87,406
t42,520

t,212,s30
2,632,992

S 14,949,888 S 10,981,318 S 25,931,206

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Charges for
Seruices

CIW OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2I

Revenues

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

155,012 s

1,690,486

Grants and
Contributions

Governmental
Activities

Net (Expense) Revenue And
Chanse in Net Position

Business-
Type

ActivitiesFunctions/Programs
Governmental Activities

General Government
Law Enforcement

Fire Control

Streets and Sidewalks

Animal Control
Parks and Recreation
Community Redevelopment

Non-Departmental
Airport Operations
lnterest on Long-Term Debt

Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities
Utility Services

5

Expenses

743,OL2 s
984,983

833,323

473,O9L
63,401

89,742

131,508

6,705
2,535,304

1.088

5.462.257

5,210,8s5

s 73,205 $

LL4,802

r28,OO7

(s747es) s
(984,983)

(833,323)

(473,091)

(53,40r.)
(8s,742l,

(131,608)
(5,70s)

(730,015)

t3.888.7s21

855,734
16,400

75,602
368,927
324,5!t
817,908

69,424
894

74,56r

800,000

800,000

(3s8,046)

ts.307.934

t,239,566

1.239.566

(800,000)

(800,000)

477,945

10,503,373

Total

.574,79s1

(984,983)

(833,323)

(473,091)
(53,401)

(89,7421

(131,608)
(5,70s)

(730,015)
(1,088)

(3.888.7521

1,239,566

f 2.64q.1861

8s5,234
16,400

75,602
368,927
324,5L1
817,908

69,424
1,646

74,567

119,899

25.87r,307

s

(1,088)

(3,888,7s2)

t 11 /t,-7a 11) (

1_845.498

5,538,198

7 ?R? 6q6 q

General Revenues

Property Taxes

Fines and Forfeitures

Franchise Taxes

Public Service Tax

Local Government lnfrastructu re Tax

State Revenue Sharing

Telecommunication Tax

lnterest Earnings

Miscellaneous

Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets

Total General Revenues

Transfers

Transfers

Total Transfers

Chante in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

q

972,223

1 nAn )?,o

752

r27,25r 37,627 164,874
2,730,706 38,379 2,769,085

( la saq RRR q 10 sRr ?1R ( 2q gq1 706

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
19
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BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2L

General

Special
Revenue
Airport

Development

Special
Revenue

Community
Redevelopment

Total
Governmental

Funds
Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivables (Net of Allowance

For Uncollectible Accounts)
Due from Other Governments
Due from Other Funds
I nventories
Prepaid ltems

Total Assets

liabilities and Fund Balances

liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued

Expenses

Due to Other Funds
Advance from Other Funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Non-Spendable
Restricted:

Law Enforcement
Commun ity Redevelopment
Building Department
Local Option Gas Tax

Airport Operations
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

S 79s,863 S 47,3s7 S

4,825
273,35r

66,474

4,834

185,011
9,315

46,966
3,290

358,162 s

550

115,585

7,20r,472

190,386
282,666
183,059

46,966
8,t24

r,745,347 297,969 475,297 1,972,6\3

140,351
116,585
198,075

32,779
66,474

5,375 178,445
183,059
198,07s

455,Otr 99,193 5,375 559,579

50,256 55,090

469,922
2,585

87,406
r42,520

599,913
690,336 r92,776 469,922 1,353,034

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances S r,r4s,347 S 29r,969 S ns,zgt 5 i,,9r2,6r3

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

RECONCITIATION OF THE BATANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAT FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2I

Total Fund Balance for Governmental Funds

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position are
Different Because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. The cost of the assets is 527,784,970 and the accumulated
depreciation is S12,269,805.

Net pension assets and liabilities, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
the pensions are applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the
governmental funds.

Net Pension Liability - FRS

Net Pension Liability - HIS

Net Pension Asset - Police

Net Pension Asset - General

Deferred lnflow - OPEB

Deferred lnflow - FRS

Deferred lnflow - HIS

Deferred lnflow - Police

Deferred lnflow - General

Deferred Outflow - OPEB

Deferred Outflow - FRS

Deferred Outflow - HIS

Deferred Outflow - Police

Deferred Outflow - General

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, accordingly, are not

reported as fund liabilities. lnterest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental

funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due. All liabilities, both current and

long-term are reported in the statement of net position. Long-term liabilities at year-end

consist of:

Note Payable

Compensated Absences

OPEB Obligation

s 1,3s3,034

74,029,274

(161,330)

(t24,066l,

508,701

826,898

(142,2s2)
(734,381)

(16,138)

(47s,7421

(s9t,4721

105,598

380,988

68,682

18L,tgt
209,809

(30,849)

(t4s,9s7l
(356,660)

S r+,s+s,saeNet Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Revenues

Taxes:

Property Tax

Sales and Fuel Tax

Franchise Tax

Licenses, Permits, and Fees
lntergovernmental
Fines and Forfeitures
lnterest Earnings
Rental lncome
Timber and Hay Sales

Contributions and Donations
Fuel Sales

Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenues

Program Expenditures
Cu rrent:

General Government
Law Enforcement
Communications
Roads and Streets
Fire Control
Parks and Recreation
Library
Planning and Zoning
Legislative and Legal

Animal Control
Airport Operations
Community Redevelopment
Non-Departmenta I

Capital Outlay
Debt Service:

Principal
I nterest

(Total Expenditures)

(Deficiency) Excess of Revenues
(Under) Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Sale of Capital Assets

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End ofYear

CITY OF WIILISTON, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAT FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2l

General

Special
Revenue
Airport

Development

s 699,513
452,571
513,946
129,409
763,499

76,400
489

s

1r4,802

276
338,710
193,862

6,350

25,777

Special
Revenue

Community
Redevelopment

Total
Governmental

Funds

1,t57,914
13,392

5 Lss,72t

300

s 8ss,234
452,571
s13,945
129,409
878,301

76,400
895

338,710
793,962

6,350
L,157,914

39,469

130

2,607,954 1,918,956 L56,151 4,583,061

338,792
1,L77,526

247,693
366,303
634,685

23,328
6,437

1.82,707

54,868
53,847

338,792
L,777,526

247,693
366,303
634,685

23,328
6,437

182,707
54,868
53,847

I,487,449
77,599
5,675

350,s24

t,487,449

163,642

77,599

7r,844
5,675

115,038

22,292
1,088

.3,23O,2791

(622,32s1

(1,64s,091) (L49,443)

173,865 6,708

22,292
088

(441,7521

800,000
(rr2,4641
72!,\50

r12,464 972,464
(r12,4641
121,150

808,686 rt2,464 921,150

479,398

873,636

s 0,336 s 792.776 s qag,gz2 s 1.3s3,034

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ctTY oF wtLLtsToN, FtoRtDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BATANCES OF GOVERNMENTAT

FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2I

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are
Different Because:

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the

amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period:

Capital Additions
Depreciation Expense

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, notes payable) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
position. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of
long-term debt and related items:

Repayment of Long-Term Debt

Compensated absences reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as

expenditures in governmental funds:

Net Change in Compensated Absences

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities, changes in pension and OPEB liabilities are

reported as a pension and OPEB expense. The following changes affected
pension and OPEB related expense:

Pension Expense - FRS

Pension Expense - HIS

Pension Expense - Police

Pension Expense - General

OPEB Expense - General

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FTORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BATANCES - GENERAT FUND

BUDGET AND ACTUAT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2t

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Revenues
Taxes

Licenses, Permits, and Fees

lntergovernmental
Fines and Forfeitures
lnterest Earnings
Contributions and Donations
Misc. Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

General Government
Law Enforcement
Communications
Streets and Sidewalks
Fire Control
Parks and Recreation
Libra ry
Planning and Zoning
Legislative and Legal

Animal Control
Non-Departmental

Capital Outlay
Debt Service:

Principal
I nterest

(Total Expenditures)

(Deficiency) of Revenues (Under)

Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in
Transfers (out)
lssuance of Debt
Sale of Capital Assets

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balances, Beginning ofYear

s 1,s4s,347 s
106,850
640,7t3

19,050
4,000

38,800

r,527,847
105,350
669,113

19,050
4,000
3,500

30,600

S 1,668,030 S

r29,409
763,499

16,400
489

6,3s0
25,777

44,783
24,O59
94,386
(2,6s0)
(3,511)
2,850

(4,8231
2,354,t60 2,453,460 2,607,954 t54,494

301,92s
7,23r,283

268,953
309,732
587,580

20,797
6,799

764,753
41,000
50,116
19,357
50,000

338,792
1,177,525

247,693
366,303
634,685

23,328
6,437

182,707
54,868
53,847
5,675

115,038

(41,866)

54,508
20,509

(56,570)
(80,s8s)

(2,s31)
(238)

(t2,9s41
(13,868)

(3,731)

L3,679
228,1t2

296,926
L,232,O34

268,202
309,733
554,100

20,797
6,799

769,753
41,000
50,116
19,354

343,150

3t,7Ot
7,790

22,292
1,099

9,409
692

(3,0s1,695) (3,344,845) (3,230,2791 174,566

(697,s3s) (891,385) 1622,3251 269,060

800,000
(712,465)

10,000

800,000

1It2,465)
199,650

4,200

800,000
(712,4641

727,I50

1

(199,6s0)
116,950

697 535 891,385 808,686 (82,699)

186,361

503,975

186,361

14s,322)

Fund Balances, End of Year s s s 690,336 s 74r,039

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BATANCES

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

AIRPORT DEVELOPMENT

BUDGET AND ACTUAT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2L

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final
Actual

Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget

Revenues

I ntergovernmenta I Revenue

lnterest Earnings

Rental lncome
Timber and Hay Sales

Fuel Sales

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Cu rrent:

Airport Operations
Capital Outlay

(Total Expenditures)

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

1,793,931 1,793,931 1,818,956

s 440,523 s
600

304,695

440,523 s
600

3O7,795

2,900
7,037,253

16,860

174,802 s
276

338,710

t93,862
7,157,974

13,392

1325,72t1

1324)
36,915

190,962
726,667

(3,468)
1,031,253

15,960

25,025

1,353,408

440,523
1,353,408

440,523
t,481,449

763,642

(128,041)

276,997
(1,793,93r) (1,793,931) (1,645,091) \48,840

t73,865 173,865

173,865

78,977

173,86s

18,911

s s 5 !92,776 5 192,776

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

SPECIAT REVENUE FUND

COMMUN ITY REDEVETOPM ENT

BUDGET AND ACTUAT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 3'O,2O2I

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Revenues

Taxes

lnterest and Other
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Community Redevelopment
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency} of Over (Under)

Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfer in

Total Other Financing Sources (Usesl

Net Change in Fund Balance

5 13s,225 S 755,727

130

300

150

t35,225 s
150

20,496
(20)

300

s

135,375 135,375 156,151 20,776

76,tt3
436,135

135,436
376,8Lt

77,599
71,844

57,837

304,957
5t2,248 572,247 149,443

(376,873) (.375,872l' 6,708

362,804

383,580

t12,465 rr2,464 7r2,464
tr2,465 M,464 772,464

779,L72 383,580

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 350,750 86,342

Fund Balances, End ofYear s s s 469,922 s 469,922

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ctTY oF wtLLtsToN, FtoRtDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2L

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
lnvestments - Certificates of Deposits
Accounts Receivable, Net
Due from Other Governments
Advance from Other Funds

lnventories
Prepaids

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets:

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Net Pension Asset
Capital Assets:

Land and Land lmprovements
Construction in Progress

Electric Distribution System
Water Distribution System
Sewer Plant and Distribution System
Natural Gas Distribution System

Machinery and Equipment
(Accumulated Depreciation)

Total Capital Assets, Net
Total Non-Current Assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflow of Resources
OPEB Related
Pension Related

Total Deferred Outflow of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred outflow of Resources

Iiabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Compensated Absences - Current
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets - Customer Deposits
Note Payable - Current
Power Costs Recovered in Advance

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities:
Compensated Absences
OPEB Obligation
Note Payable

Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred lnflow of Resources
OPEB Related
Pension Related

Total Deferred lnflow of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred lnflow of Resources

N€t Position
Net lnvestment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Net Pension Asset
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

s

Business-Type
Activities -

Enterp.ise Funds
Utility Fund

1,715,565
87,r30

1,003,507
714,418
198,075
249,429
t3,775

3,981,899

292,400
905,301

133,956
1,r79,973
4,gss,718
4,666,753
5,836,354
7,920,248
3,739,477

(13.0s8.834)

8,773,649
9,971,350

13,9s3,249

65,023
226,418
297,447

_L4,2!!sso_

753,923
15,9s7

292,400
48,435
78,256

1,188,971

47,873
197,90r

7,106,522
r,352,296
2.547.267

78,931
643,174
722,705

3,263,372

7,587,303
488,545

2,905,470

l-lspg].3ls-
The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FTORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2L

Business-Type

Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Utility Fund

s 5,538,198
5,539,199

Operating Revenues
Charges for Services

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Electric Power Purchased
Natural Gas Purchased
Personal Services
Professional Fees and Services

I nsu ra nce

Operations and Maintenance
Depreciation and Amortization
Materials and Supplies
Other
Capital Projects

Total Operating Expenses

Operating lncome

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Capital Grants and Contributions
lnterest lncome
lnterest Expense

Total Non-OperatinE Revenues (Expensesl

lncome Before Capital Contributions and Transfers

Capital Contributions and Transfers
Gain on Disposition of Fixed Assets

Transfers (out)

Total Contributions and Transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

1,835,950

205,863
1,015,613

700,711
52,270

310,150
685,760
793,705

27,774
14r,786

5,168,982

369,276

9r2,223
752

(4L,873)

871,r02

1,240,3r8

37,627
(800,000)

(762,3731

477,945

10,503,373

S 10,981,318

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FTOWS

PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2I

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Received from Customers/Others
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services
Cash Payments to Employees for Services

Net Cash Provided by {Used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities
Operating Transfers to Other Funds

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Non-Capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets
lnterest Paid on Notes Payable
Payments on Notes Payable
Capital Grant Proceeds

Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from lnvesting Activities
Changes in Certificates of Deposit, Net
lnterest Received

Net Cash Used for lnvesting Activities

Net lncrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning ofYear

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating lncome to Net Cash

Provided bv (Used in) Operatine Activities

Operating lncome
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating lncome to Net Cash

Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense

(lncrease) Decrease in Assets and Deferred Outflows:
(lncrease) in Accounts Receivable
Decrease in lnventories
(lncrease) in Net Pension Asset
Decrease in Deferred Outflows
Decrease in Prepaids

lncrease (Decrease) in Liabilities and Deferred lnflows:
Increase in Power Costs Recovered in Advance
lncrease in Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
lncrease in OPEB Obligation
(Decrease) in Compensated Absences
lncrease in Customer Deposits Payable
lncrease in Deferred lnflows

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

As Shown in the Accompanying Financial Statements
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Business-Type

Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Utility Fund

5 s,qsz,t+s
(3,196,311)

lt,o72,t84l
1,213,553

(800,000)
(800,000)

|t,r99,712l,
(4t,8731
(46,1s3)

289,4s3

-{s6-0,6-3Ei
(1es)

557

.s46,4481

2,554,4L3

752

s 2.007.965

s 369,216

685,760

le3,42sl
26,623

(s0s,373)
42,578
2,749

t3,977
247,O24

15,399

1240)
23,462

386,O27

844,437
S 1,213.5s3

1,7L5,565
292,400

s

q

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF WILIISTON, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2L

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

lnvestments, at Fair Value

Contributions Receivable

Total Assets

Pension
Trust
Funds

s 62,406
8,852,792

18,499

8,933,697

7,208
7,2O9

S 8,926,489

liabilities
Accrued Expenses

Total Liabilities

Fiduciary Net Position - Restricted for Pensioners

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WIILISTON, FTORIDA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARV NET POSITION

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2I

Additions
Contributions:

Employer
State

Employees

Total Contributions

lnvestment Earnings

Total Additions

Deductions
Benefits Paid

Administrative Expenses

Total Deductions

Net lncrease in Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Net Position
Beginning of Year
End of Year

Pension
Trust
Funds

s L24,990
32,834
92,r84

250,008

I,477,74O

I,727,748

468,489
38,155

506,644

t,22t,to4

7,705,385

s 8,926,489

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note 1 - Description and Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity
The City of Williston, Florida (the City) was established in 1897 under Florida Statutes, Section 165.031(4).
The government operates under a Mayor-Council form of government and provides the following services

as authorized by its charter: Public safety (law enforcement, fire, and animal control), public utilities,
streets and sidewalks, parks and playgrounds, airport development, and general government services.

The financial statements of the government have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental units. The Government
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles.

The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component unit, an entity for
which the government is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although
legally separate entities are, in substance, part of the government's operations.

Blended Component Unifs-The Williston Community Redevelopment Agency (the Agency) is included in the
financial reporting entity as a blended component unit. The Agency is established under Florida Statutes,

Chapter 163, for the purpose of rehabilitation, conservation, and redevelopment of certain slum and blighted
areas in order to serve the interest of public health, safety, morals, and welfare of the community residents.
Members of the Agency's Board are appointed by the government's City Council for which certain limited
power may be delegated to the Agency in carrying out its activities. However, other powers, including final
approval of redevelopment plans and the determination of areas as slum or blighted, vest in the City Council.

The Agency is presented as a special revenue fund in the accompanying financial statements. '

Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the fiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. 6overnmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other non-exchange transactions, are reported separately from business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges to external customers for support. Likewise, the
primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the
primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues.

Basis of Presentation-Government-Wide Financial Statements
While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are inter-related. The
governmental activities column incorporates data from governmentalfunds, while business-type activities
incorporate data from the government's enterprise funds. Separate financial statements are provided for
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the
government-wide financial statements.

As discussed earlier, the government has one blended component unit. The Agency is included in the
governmental activities column in the government-wide financial statements.
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As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes where the amounts are reasonably
equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and other charges between the government's electric
and water functions and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Basis of Presentation-Fund Financial Statements
Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, blended
component units and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are

reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

r The generol fund is the government's primary operating fund. lt accounts for all financial resources
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

r The speciol revenue airport development fund accounts for operations of the government's airport
development and operational related activities.

r The special revenue community redevelopment fund accounts for the governmental community
redevelopment activities for the purpose of eliminating and preventing the development of slum and

blighted areas.

The government reports the following major enterprise fund:

r The utility fund accounts for all utility activities of the government. The utility fund reflects activities
of the electric systems, the sewage treatment plant and collections systems, the water system, natural
gas distribution systems, the solid waste department, and the newly developing COWLink system.

Additionally, the government reports the following fiduciary fund:

r The pension trust funds account for the activities of the government's Police Officers and General
Employees Retirement Plans and Trusts, which accumulate resources for pension benefit payments to
all qualified employees.

During the course of operations, the government has activity between funds for various purposes. Any
residual balances outstanding at year-end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances to/from
other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are

made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances between the funds
included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal
balances in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in
business-type activities are eliminated so that onlythe net amount is included as internal balances in the
business-type activities colu mn.

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources funds. ln the fund financial
statements, these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While reported in the fund
financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial
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statements. Transfers between the funds that are included in the governmental activities column.
Similarly, balances between the funds are included in business-type activities are eliminated so that only
the net amount is included as internal balances in the business-type activities column.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual bosis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are

levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources meosurement

focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be availoble when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenues to be generally available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of
the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Fiduciary fund financial statements for the foregoing pension plans and trusts are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting for trust funds. Employer and participant contributions are recognized in the
period that contributions are due and payable in accordance with the terms of each plan. lnvestments in
the plans are reported at fair value according to the independent custodian for each plan using various third-
party pricing source. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
government's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Contribution requirements and contributions made are required by the Florida Statutes and the
Government's Pension Board govern employer and employee contribution requirements for each plan.

The government's contributions are actuarially determined to ensure sufficient assets will be available to
pay benefits when due. The costs of administering each plan are funded using investment earnings.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all

considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received
by the government.

Budgetary lnformation
Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for the
general fund, airport fund, and community redevelopment fund. The appropriated budget is prepared by
fund, function, and department. The government's department heads and City Manager may make

transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of appropriations between departments
require the approval of the City Council. The legal level of budgetary control is the fund level.
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Assets, liabilities, and Fund Balances

Cosh ond Cash Equivalents and lnvestments-The government's cash and cash equivalents are considered
to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months
or less from the date of acquisition. For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, all demand deposits
in the proprietary fund are included in the statement.

State statutes and the government's investment policy authorize the government to invest in obligations of
the U.S. Treasury, interest bearing time deposits or savings accounts in qualified public depositories, money
market funds, and certain governmental investment pools authorized by the state.

lnvestments for the government are reported at fair value. The certificates of deposits are purchased with
maturities of greater than three months and are considered investments. The government's pension funds
are invested in a pooled account under the Florida Municipal lnvestment Trust Fund, including cash and
cash equivalents, and government and corporate securities. The Fund operates in accordance with state
laws and regulations. The reported value of the pension funds' investments is the same as the fair value of
the pool shares.

Accounts Receivable and Due from Other Governments-Utility operating revenues are generally
recognized on the basis of cycle billings rendered monthly. The amount of services delivered after the last
billing date and up to September 30 is estimated and accrued at year-end.

Due from Other Governments represent amounts due from the federal, state or local governments, State
of Florida, or Levy County for shared revenues or costs. The amount is considered collectible in full within
60 days of fiscal year-end.

lnventories ond Prepaids-All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method.
lnventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when
purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as

prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Capital Assets-Capital assets, which include land, plant distribution systems, machinery and equipment,
and infrastructure assets (if purchased after 2003) (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost
of more than 55,000. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased
or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. lnterest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed.
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Land, plant and equipment of the government is depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets
Buildings
Plant Distribution System
lmprovements
Vehicles
Machinery and Equipment

Years
20-50

5-50
5-50
3-10
5-40

Long-Term Ohligations-ln the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the
fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net
position.

Governmental Fund Balances-fhe GASB has promulgated Statement No. 54, entitled Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. The Statement is designed to do two things: 1) it
clarifies the definition of what activities are to be reported within different types of governmental funds
(general fund, special revenue fund type, capital project fund type, debt service fund type, and permanent
fund type); and 2) it provides clearer fund balance definitions that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on
the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of resources
reported in governmental funds as follows:

I Non-Spendable-Amounts that are not in spendable form (such as inventory) are required to be
maintained intact.

t Restricted-Amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors,
bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling
legislation.

t Committed-Amounts constrained to specific purposes by the City itself, using its highest level of
decision-making authority (i.e., City Council). To be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used
for any other purpose unless the City takes the highest level action to remove or the City Council
approves the change.

t Assigned-Amounts the City intends to use for a specific purpose. lntent can be expressed by the City
Council or by an official or body to which the City Council delegates authority.

t Unassigned-Amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive amounts are only reported in the
General Fund.

The City Council is the highest level of decision-making authority of the City, and approves the
establishment, increase, and reduction in Committed fund balances by budget resolutions and
amendments. Restricted and Committed fund balances are always used first for the purposes for which
they were designated. Changes to this practice require prior City Council approval. A minimum fund
balance amount has not been formally adopted.
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Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

Program Revenues-Arnounts reported as progrom revenues include: 1) charges to customers or
applicantsforgoods, services, or privileges provided;2) operatinggrants and contributions; and 3) capital
grants and contributions, including special assessments. lnternally dedicated resources are reported as

general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

PropertyTax Revenue Recognition-Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties and the collection
of all county, municipal, and school board property taxes are consolidated in the offices of the County
Property Appraiser and County Tax Collector. The laws of the state regulating tax assessments are also

designed to assure a consistent property valuation method state-wide. Florida Statutes permit
municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills. The City levied a rate of 6.50 mills in the
2019 tax roll.

The tax levy of the City is established by the City Council prior to October L of each year and the Levy

County Property Appraiser incorporates the City's millage into the total tax levy, which includes the County
and the County School Board tax requirements.

All propertyisreassessedaccordingtoitsfairmarketvalueJanuarylofeachyear. Eachassessmentroll is

submitted to the Executive Director of the Florida Department of Revenue for review to determine if the
rolls meet all of the appropriate requirements of Florida Statutes.

All taxes are levied on November 1 of each year, or as soon thereafter, as the assessment roll is certified
and delivered to the County Tax Collector. All unpaid taxes become delinquent on April 1- following the
year in which they are assessed. Discounts are allowed for early payment at the rate of 4% in the month
of November,3Yointhe month of December,2%oin the month of January, andL% in the month of February.
Taxes paid in March are without discount.

On, or prior to, June 1 following the tax year, certificates are sold for all delinquent taxes on real property.
Aftersale,taxcertificatesbearinterestof L8%peryearoratanylowerratebidbythebuyer. Application
for a tax deed on any unredeemed tax certificates may be made by the certificate holder after a period of
two years. Unsold certificates are held by the County.

Delinquent taxes on personal property bear interest of !8% per year until the tax is satisfied either by

seizure and sale of the property or by the five-year statute of limitations.

The City does not accrue its portion of the County-held tax sale certificates or personal property tax
warrants because such amounts are not measurable and available as of the balance sheet date.

Compensated Absences-lt is the government's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but
unused vacation and sick pay benefits. There is no liability for three quarters of the unpaid accumulated
sick leave since the government has a policy to pay only one quarter of such pay benefits when employees
separate from service with the government. All vacation pay and one quarter of sick pay is accrued when
incurredinthegovernment-wide,proprietary,andfiduciaryfundfinancial statements. Aliabilityforthese
amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee
resignations and retirements.
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Operating and Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses-Proprietary funds distinguish operating
revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result
from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the government's utility system

enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales and services. The government also recognizes as

operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the
system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are

reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Deferred lnflows and Deferred Outflows of Resources

ln addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies
to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until
then. The City has two items that qualify for reporting in this category. ln the statement of net position, the
deferred outflow for pensions is an aggregate of items related to pensions and the deferred outflow for
OPEB is an aggregate of items related to OPEB. The deferred outflows related to pensions and OPEB will be

recognized as either expense or a reduction in the related liability in future reporting years.

ln addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to
a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. ln the
statement of net position, the deferred inflow for pensions is an aggregate of items related to pensions and

the deferred inflows for OPEB is an aggregate of items related to OPEB. The deferred inflows related to
pensions and OPEB will be recognized as reductions to expense in future reporting years.

On-Behalf Payments for Fringe Benefits
The City receives on-behalf payments from the State of Florida to be used for Police Officers' Retirement
Plan Contributions. On-behalf payments to the City totaled 532,834 for the year ended September 30, 2021.

Such payments are recorded as intergovernmental revenue and public safety expenditures in the generally
accepted accounting principles basis government-wide and general fund financial statements.

Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountabilitv

Budgetary lnformation
Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted forthe general, special revenue, enterprise,
and pension trust funds. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. Project-length financial
budgets are adopted for all capital projects funds.

Prior to August 1, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal
year commencing the following October 1-. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and

the means of financing them. Public hearings are conducted in August and September to obtain taxpayer
comments. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally adopted and approved. Revisions that alter the total
expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council.
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The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department. The government's City Manager
may make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of appropriations between
departments require approval by the City Council by resolution under the government's charter. The legal
level of budgetary control is the fund level. Further, Florida Statutes, Section L66.24'J,, requires the
government to expend or contract for expenditures only in pursuance of budgeted appropriations. There
were no material violations of budgetary or other legal and contractual provisions requiring disclosure.

Note 3 - Deposits and lnvestments

Fair Value

lnterest Rate

Risk

WAM Level

Credit

Ratinss

Cash and Cash Equivalents
(Non-Pension lnvestments)

Cash Deposits

Petty Cash

lnvestments:

Certificates of Deposit

Total

Pension Cash and lnvestments:

Police Officer Pension:

FMiW Cash and Money Market

FMiW Broad Market High Quality Bond

FMiVT Core Plus

FMiW Diversified Large Cap Equity

FMiW Small to Mid-Cap Equity Fund

FMiW lnternational Equity Portfolio

FMiW Core Real Estate Portfolio

Regular Employee Pension:

FMiW Cash and Money Market
FMiW Broad Market High Quality Bond

FMiW Core Plus

FMiW Diversified Large Cap Equity

FMiW Small to Mid-Cap Equity Fund

FMiVT lnternational Equity Portfolio

FMiVT Core Real Estate Portfolio

Total Pension Cash and lnvestments

Total

As shown in the Statement of Net Position

Entity-Wide Cash and Cash Equivalents

Entity-Wide Non-Pension lnvestments

Entity-Wide Restricted Cash and

Cash Equivalents

Pension Cash and Money Market
Pension lnvestments

Total

s 3,207,376

2,000

87.130

23,720

525,229

535,395

857,309

47t,Or2
69]-,269

284,640

38,685

856,626

873,205

1,398,239

768,20t
t,127,43t

464,236

8,915,199

S_______E211JE

Fair Value

s 2,916,977

87,130

292,400

62,406

8.852.792

S rz,2t1..7os

N/A

6.30 Years

8.21- Years

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

N/A

6.30 Years

8.21 Years

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

3.295.506

2

3

2

2

2

3

N/A
pdlf/s4

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

N/A

AAf/S4

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

s
2

3

2

2

2

3
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Fair Value Hierarchy
The City holds assets that are defined as short-term investments. The City's investments are recorded at
fair value unless the investment qualifies as an external investment pool under the guidance in GASB

Statement No. 79. The fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value into three levels:

Level 1-lnputs - are quoted prices (unadjusted)for identicalassets or liabilities in active markets that a

government can access at the measurement date.

Level2-lnputs - are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for an

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These inputs are derived from, or corroborated by,

observable market data through correlation or by other means.

Level 3-lnputs - are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest
priorityto Levell inputsandthe lowest priorityto Level3 inputs. lf a priceforan identicalassetorliability
is not observable, a government should measure fair value using another valuation technique that
maximizes the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs.

Custodial Credit Risk-Cash Deposits
The City's cash deposits are covered by Federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the City's
custodial bank, which is pledged to a state trust fund that provides security for amounts held in excess of
Federal Deposit lnsurance Corporation (FDIC) coverage in accordance with the Florida Security for Public
Deposits Acf Chapter 280, Florida Statutes.

The Florido Security for Public Deposits Act (the Act) established guidelines for qualification and
participation by banks and savings associations, procedures for the administration of the collateral
requirements and characteristics of eligible collateral. Under the Act, the qualified public depository must
pledge at least 5O% of the average daily balance for each month of all public deposits in excess of any
applicable deposit insurance. Additional collateral up to a maximum of L25% may be required if deemed
necessary under conditions set forth in the Act.

The government's investment policies are governed by state statutes and local ordinance. The basic

allowable investment instruments include Local Government Surplus Funds, or any governmental
investments pool authorized pursuant to the Florida lnterlocal Act, as provided by Section 163, Florida
Statutes, SEC registered money market funds with the highest credit quality rating, interest bearing time
deposits or savings accounts in qualified public depositories, and direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury.

The government's pension trust funds are held in the Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund (FMPTF). The

FMPTF is established as a trust whereby governmental entities with employee pension or other
postemployment benefit plans may elect to join the trust and with the trust providing the plans with
administrative and investment services for the benefit of Participating Employers, Participating
Employees, and Beneficiaries. All employee pension plan assets with the FMPTF are included in the trust's
Master Trust Fund. Employee pension plan assets of the defined benefit type are invested by the FMPTF

through the Florida Municipal lnvestment Trust (FMlvT) for the benefit of the Participating Employers,
participating Employees, and Beneficiaries.
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The FMlvT, administered by the Florida League of Cities, lnc., is an interlocal governmental entity created
under the laws of the State of Florida. The FMIvT is an Authorized lnvestment under Sec. 163.01 Florida
Statutes. The FMIvT is a Local Government lnvestment Pool (LGIP) and is considered an external
investment pool for GASB reporting purposes; however, subject to the fair value reporting under GASB

Statement No. 72.

At September 3O,2O21", the government's investment balances consisted of certificates of deposit with
local banks and the pension trust funds held in the FMPTF. Asset allocation in the FMPTF external
investment pool at September 30,202'J., is as follows:

Asset

Cash and Money Market
Broad Market High Quality Bond
Core Plus

Diversified Large Cap Equity
Diversified Small to Mid-Cap Equity
lnternational Equity

Core Real Estate Portfolio
Total

Asset
Allocation
Percentage

0.7%
755%
15.8%

2s3%
139%
203%

8.4%
7OO.Oo/"

lnterest Rate Risk-lnterest rate risk exists when there is a possibility the change in interest rates could
adversely affect an investment's fair value. The City does not have a policy for interest rate risk. The
weighted average maturity (WAM) of the underlying debt investments in the FMPTF pool is used to
determine interest rate risk when applicable.

Credit RlSk-Credit risk exists when there is a probability that the issuer or other counterparty to an
investment may be unable to fulfill its obligations. The government's investment policy limits exposure to
credit risk.

Custodial Credit Risk-Under GASB Statement No. 40, disclosure is only required if investments are
uninsured, unregistered, and held by either the counterpart of the counterparty's trust department or
agent but not in the City's name. The City's investments are through the FMPTF in the FMiVT, which are
evidenced by shares in the pool. lnvestments in the pools should be disclosed but not categorized because
they are not evidenced by securities that exist in a physical or book entry form. The City's investments are
with the pool, not the securities that make up the pool and, therefore, no disclosure is required.

Foreign Current Risk-The City's investments are part of FMiVT and those investments are not subject to
foreign current risk.
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Note4-CapitalAssets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30,2021, was as follows

Beginning Increases Decreases
Governmental Activaties

Capital Assets, Not Being
Depreciated:

Land

Construction in Progress
Total Capital Assets, Not Being

Depreciated

Capital Assets, Being
Depreciated:

Buildings and lmprovements
Equipment

Total Capital Assets, Being
Depreciated

Less Accumulated
Depreciation for:

Buildings and lmprovements
Equipment

Total Accumu lated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Being
Depreciated, Net

Total Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net

Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, Not Being

Depreciated:
Land and Land lmprovements
Construction in Progress
Construction in Progress - Non-CDBG

Total Capital Assets, Not
Being Depreciated

Capital Assets, Being
Depreciated:

Plant and Distribution
Systems

Machinery and Equipment
Total Capital Assets, Being

Depreciated

Less Accumulated
Depreciation for:

Plant and Distribution
Systems

Machinery and Equipment
Total Accumu lated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Being
Depreciated, Net

Business-Type Activities Capital
Assets, Net

S (34,ooo) S

1,559,509 (34,000)

(24,78sl'

2s,s2s,46L 293,620 (24,7851

(8,928,18s) (874,3s0)

s

322,02r 991,918

(41,880)

207,795 (41,880)

(79,47s,e47) (473,s76)

Transfers/
Adjustments Ending

s 1,s09,23s $
750,274

s r,475,235
750,274

1,62s,509

20,8!7,979
4,707,482

180,528
713,092

20,998,507
4,795,789

25,794,296

(3,341,620) (277,7611
(12,269,80s) (1,14s,s11)

24,785
24,785

(9,802,s3s)
(3,587,996)

(13,390,s31)

(8s1,891) 72,403,765

s 14.915.165 s {851.891l s (34.000) s s14.029.274

S 133,966 S

188,055
s s 133,956

503,015
675,958

314,960
676,958

1,313,939

17,296,637
3,05s,992

82,435
125,350

t7,379,072
3,L39,472

(1,e3s,007) (272,244)
(t2,4l4,es4l (68s,760)

4L,880
41,880

20,578,544

(10,9s3,463)
(2,l}s,3711

(13,0s8,834)

7,937,675 1477,e6s) __ 7,4ss,770

l_g259EE_l_51383_
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:

2,943
82,O77

L,827
55,789
83,443
4t,416
13,168

48,575
4,725

811,548
s 1.14s.511

68,276
rg2,54L
706,766
136,503
99,657
92.O77

s 68s.760

Note 5 - lnterfund Receivable, Pavables, Transfers, and Advances

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that interfund
goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur. All amounts are expected to be paid

within one year. Noted no amounts receivable and/or payable as of fiscal year-end.

The composition of interfund advances as Septembe r 3O,2O2L, is as follows

Advanced To (Due Tol

Governmental Activities
General Government
Law Enforcement
Planning and Zoning
Streets and Sidewalks
Fire Control
Parks and Playgrounds
Library

Community Redevelopment
Animal Control
Airport Operations

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities
Electric
Water
Natural Gas

Sewer
Sanitation
Administrative Services - Utility

Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Activities

General Fund
General Fund

Advanced From (Due From)

Utility Fund
Airport Fund

s

s

Amount
s 198,075

66,474

The advance to the Utility Fund was to fund the purchase of a fire truck. No payments were made in the
current year. The due to the Airport Fund was to fund operating and capital shortfalls in the fund.

The City makes transfers among its funds in the course of the fiscal year. The principal purpose of the
transfers is to allocate resources from the enterprise funds to the general fund to assist with various
governmental activities. Also, transfers are used to move unrestricted general fund revenues to
finance various activities that the government must account for in the other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations, including amounts provided as subsidies or matching funds for various grant
programs. A summary of interfund transfers follows:
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Major Funds

General Fund
Utility Fund
Community Redevelopment Fund

Total lnterfund Transfers

Note Payable
Year Ended

September 30,2021;
2022
2023
Total

Business-Type Long-Term Debt Schedules:

Year Ended

September 30, 2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

2027-2037
2032-2036
2037-2039

Total

s

lnterfund
Transfers ln Transfers (Outl

172,464
800,000

800,000 5

772.464

5_______9AAS4 S________ 3AAS4

Note6-Long-TermDebt

Bonk Notes Related to Governmental Activities-The governmerit has one bank promissory note, which
was for the purpose of financing a fire truck. lnterest rate on the note is2.5O%- The original loan amount
was $148,900 and is secured by a pledge of revenues received from Levy County for fire protection
services. At Septembe r 3O, 202L, total interest paid on this note was 51,088 and the final payment will
be made during lhe2O22-2023 fiscalyear.

New City Holl Bank Note-ln May 20L8, the City obtained a bank note with a local bank for up to 53,000,000
to finance the demolition of the old City Hall building and construction of the new City Hall building. The

interest rate is 3.5% from May 8, 2018 through May 8, 2039. The City will make 12 monthly payments of
interest only, beginning May 8, 2018, followed by 24O payments in the amount required to amortize the
unpaid principal balance. All outstanding principal and interest are due on May 8, 2039. At September 30,

202L, the interest rate was 3.5% and total interest paid on this note was 541,873.

Fire Department and Police Building Renovation - ln July 2021 the City entered into a loan agreement for
5100,000 to renovate the Fire Department and Police Buildings. As of fiscal year end, none of the funds were
drawn down.

General [ong-Term Debt Schedules:

s

Direct Borrowings
Governmental Activities

Principal lnterest
22,876

7,973

S__________30€4e S______________i$

Direct Borrowings
Business-Tvpe Activities - Utilitv Svstem

Principal Interest
39,591
37,869
36,085

34,237
32,234

130,456
7L,325
10.054

s 505
40

s 48,435
50,158

51,942
53,789
55,702

309,675
368,805
216.4s1

s
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Changes in Long-Term Liabilities-Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30,2O2I, was as

follows:

Beginning
Balance lncreases Decreases

Ending

Balance

Due Within
One Year

Governmental Activities
Direct Borrowing
Note Payable - Fire Truck

Compensated Absences

Other Postemployment Benefits

Net Pension Liability (FRS and HIS)

Total Governmental Activities
Long-Term Activities

Business-Type Activities
Direct Borrowings

Note Payable:
City Hall

Compensated Absences
Other Postemployment Benefits

Total Business-Type Activities

Description of

Notes

Pledge

Revenue

s 53,141 s
133,990

267,742
1,35r,927

5 Q2,2s2l S

(135,823)
30,849 s

I45,997
355,660

285,397

22,876
36,499

S1

148,830

89,518

(1,066,s30)

200 l_-23s,34s- -$-1122595t -$-4Epqr_ l_59J5_

t,207,tro
64,O70

L82,502

60,996

15,399

(46,1s3)
(61,236)

r,t54,957
63,830

I97,907

48,435

15,957

j,J,!!1,6u l-zggg5- l--i!z!ggt -slllEEqE- l_--0t,3s2

Pledged Revenues
The City has pledged certain revenues, to repay loans outstanding as of September30,2O2'J,. The following
table reports the revenues, pledged for each note issued, the amounts of such revenues received in the
current year, the current year principal and interest paid on the debt, the approximate percentage of each
revenue, which is pledged to meet the note obligation, the date through which the revenue is pledged
under the note agreement, and the total pledged future revenues for each note, which is the amount of
the remaining principal and interest on the notes at September 30,2O2I:

Revenue

Received

Principal

and

lnterest

Paid

Estimated

Percentage

Pledsed

Outstanding

Principal and

lnterest

Pledged

Throueh

Governmental

Activity

Note Payable:

Fire Truck

Business-Type

Activity

Note Payable:

City Hall Loan

Levy County Board of

County Commissioners

for Revenues Fire

Protection Services S 297,555 $ 23,380 5% S 31,394

Net System

Revenues (1)(2) S rss,rqr S 8s,o26 22o/" S 1,s46,809

2023

2039

(1) Net System Revenues - all excess revenues received by the City for the operation of utility system (after payment of associated

operation and maintenance expense).

(21 Per the loan agreement, pledged revenues for the City Hall Note will be "all utility system revenues". Additionally, the City

agrees to pledge such additional non-ad valorem tax revenues as is necessary. lnformation for pledged revenue amounts

will be included when loan balance outstanding is finalized.
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Note 7 - Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description - OPEB Plan is a single employer benefit plan administered by the City.

Pursuant to the provision of Section 7I2.O8O1, Florida Statutes, former employees who retire from the
City and their dependents are eligible to participate in the City's Health Plan for health and life insurance,
as long as they pay a full premium applicable to the coverage elected.

Benefits Provided - The OPEB Plan is a single employer benefit plan administered by the City. The retirees
are charged the same premium amount the insurance company charges for the type of coverage elected.
However, the premiums set by the insurance company are based on average experiences among younger
active employees and older retired employees. The older retirees would have a higher cost for health
insurance coverage without the City's subsidizing the cost of the retiree coverage because it pays all or a
significant portion of the premium on behalf of the active employees. Per GASB Statement No. 75, this is

called the "implicit rate subsidy".

Empfoyees Covered by Benefit Terms - At October L, 2020, the date of the most recent actuarial
valuation, plan participation consisted of the following covered by the benefit terms:

Active Plan Members
Total Participants

lnvestment Rate of Return

55

___15_

Contributions - For the OPEB Plan, contribution requirements of the City are established and may be
amended through action from the City Council. Currently the City's OPEB benefits are unfunded. The

actual contributions are based on pay-as-you-go financing requirements. There is not a separate trust
fund or equivalent arranged in which the City would make contributions to advance-fund the obligation,
as it does for its pension funds.

Net OPEB tiability - The City's net OPEB liability was measured as of September 30, 2021, and the total
OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarialvaluation as of that
date.

Actuarial Assumptions - The total OPEB liability in the October t, 2020, actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement,
unless otherwise specified:

Discount Rate: 2.43% per annum; this rate was used to discount all future benefit
payments and based on the return on the S & P Municipal Bond 2O-year

High Grade lndex as of the measurement date.

lnf lation 3.50%

3.OO% per annum

2.43%

Salary lncreases:

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates: lncreases in healthcare costs are assumed to be 8.50% for the 2020/2027
fiscal year graded down by 0.50% per year to 5.OO% for the 2O27 /28 and
later fiscal years.
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Mortality Basis Sex-distinct rates set forth in the PUB-2010 Mortality Table for general

and public safety employees, with full generational improvements in

mortality using Scale MP-2020.

Changes: Since the prior measurement date, the discount rate was increased from
2.L4% per annum to 2.43% per annum; the healthcare cost trend rates

were changed from 6.5O% for the 202O/21fiscal year graded down to
5.00% per year to 8.5O% for lhe 2O2O/21. fiscal year graded down to
5.00% per year; and the monthly implied subsidy at age 55 for the
2O2O/2L fiscal year for the retiree and his spouse was increased from

S267.50 to S35o.oo.

Types of Benefits Offered: Post-retirement medical, dental, vision, and life insurance benefits.

Premium Retirees must pay the full monthly premium as determined by the
insurance carrier for coverage other than medical and life insurance

coverage for the retiree himself and must pay the full cost of health

insurance coverage for himself above any explicit subsidies provided by

the City. The City pays any applicable premiums for single coverage under
the medical insurance program until age 65 for those employees who
retire on or after age 62 with at least 25 years of service and who were

covered under the City's health insurance program for at least five years

immediately prior to their retirement. ln addition, the City pays the entire
premium for a 5L5,000 life insurance policy to each retiree. Life insurance

coverage decreases by 35% upon the attainment of age 65 and decreases

by another 15% upon the attainment of age 70.

Changes in the OPEB tiability - for the fiscal year ended September 30,2021, were as follows

Total OPEB

[iabilitv
Balance at September 30,2O2O

Changes for a Year:

Service Cost
Demographic Gain/Loss
Assumption Changes

Expected I nterest Growth
Benefit Payments and Refunds

Net Changes

Balance at September 30,2O2L

5 qqg.a+q

127,835
(136,289)

102,240
13,998
(2.8671

104,917

s________5s4J61

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rates -
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's net OPEB liability would

be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (L.43 percent) or l-percentage-
point higher (3.43 percent) than the current discount rate:
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Comparison of Net OPEB Liabilitv Using Alternative Discount Rates

1% Decrease 2.43% Discount Rate 1% lnrease
Net OPEB Liability 616,380 s 554,561 s 449,479

Comparison of Net OPEB Liabilitv Usine Alternative Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

1% Decrease

8.5% Graded Down
to5% 1% lncrease

Net OPEB Liability s 471,826 s 554,561 s 658,513

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources - For the year
ended September 30,2O2L, the City recognized OPEB expense of 5136,545. At September 30, 2027,the
City reported 5170,621- of deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB of $227,783.

Fiscal Year
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

Thereafter
Total

2r,263
21,263
21,263
21,263
21,263

114.868

Deferred Outflows
S rs,gzs

15,975
75,975
75,97s
!5,975
90.746

Deferred lnflows

5_________170.621 S_____________22

s

Note 8 - Emplovee Retirement Plans

Defined Contribution Plan

The City provides a 457 Deferred Compensation Plan for the City Manager. Contributions to the Plan for
the year ended September 30,2O2I, were 510,894.

Defined Benefits Plans

The City maintains two single employer, defined benefit plans that separately cover full-time police officer
employees and all other general employees. Prior to October 7, 2004, the City's police officers were
covered under the same defined benefit plan along with the City's general employees. Effective October 1,

2004, the City established a separate plan and trust for police officers and transferred all liabilities for any
accrued benefits, and the cash equivalents equal to the present value to pay the accrued benefits, to the
new plan and trust.

Police Officers Plan

Retirement Plan and Trust for Police Officers-The City sponsors and administers the Retirement Plan for
the Police Officers of the City of Williston (the Plan). The Plan is considered a defined benefit single-employer
plan and is accounted for as a separate pension trust fund. The Plan covers all full-time police officers. A
City employee shall become a participant of the Plan at the time of employment. Participants contribute 5%

of compensation to the Plan, whereas the City is required to contribute an amount actuarially determined
using the aggregate actuarial cost method, currently 2052% (October L,2O2O) of covered payroll. The cost
of administering the Plan is financed by investment earnings.
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Name of the Pension Plan

Legal Plan Administrator:

Pension Plan Reporting:

Description of Benefit Terms:
Employees Covered:

Types of Benefits Offered:
Basic Pension Formula:
Early Retirement Adjustment:

Disability Pension

Pre-Retirement Death Benefit

Normal Retirement Age

Early Retirement Age:

Vesting Requirement:

Form of Payment

Average Earnings:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ctTY oF wtLUsToN, FtoRtDA

Retirement Plan and Trust for Police Officers of the City of Williston.

Board of Trustees of the Retirement Plan for the Police Officers of the
City of Williston Single-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan.

The Plan issues a stand-alone financial report each year, which contains
information about the Plan's fiduciary net position. The Plan's fiduciary
net position has been determined on the same basis used by the
pension plan and is equal to the market value of the assets as calculated
under the accrual basis of accounting. This report is available to the
public at the Plan's administrative office: Retirement Department,
Florida League of Cities, lnc. P.O. BoxL757, Tallahassee, Florida 32302,
(800) 342-8112.

Full-time police officers employed by the City of Williston.
Retirement, disability, a nd p re-retirement death benefits.
3.OO% of average earnings times service.
Early retirement pension is reduced by 3% for each year by which the
early retirement date precedes the normal retirement date.
Larger of basic pension formula or 42Yo of average earnings (for service-
connected disabilities).
Larger of basic pension formula or 25% of average earnings (for non-
service-connected disa bilities).
Disability benefits are offset as necessary to preclude the total of the
d isability compensation from exceeding average earnings.

Basic pension formula payable for L0 years at early or normal retirement
age (payable to the beneficiary ofvested participant).
Return of accumulated employee contributions (payable to the
beneficiary of a non-vested participant).
Age 55 with at least five years of service (only for participants who were
fully vested at the time of the their transfer into the Plan from the general

employees' plan prior to June 1, 2008), or Age 55 with at least 10 years

of service, or Age 52 with at least 25 years of service, or any age with at
least 30 years of service.

Age 50 with at least 10 years of service.

L00% vesting after five years of service (only for participants who were
fully vested at the time of their transfer into the Plan from the general

employees' plan prior to June L, 2008), or LOO% vesting after 10 years of
service.

Actuarially increased single life annuity 1-0-year certain and life annuity.
Actuarially equivalent soyq 662/3yo,75Yo, or 100% joint and contingent
annuity. Any other actuarially equivalent form of payment approved by

the Board ofTrustees.
Average of the highest five-years of pensionable earnings out of the last

10 years.

No automatic cost-of-living adjustment is provided.
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Deferred Retirement Option
Plan (DRoP):

Legal Authority:

Plan Amendments:

lnformation used to determine the Net Pension Liability

Employer's Reporting Date

Measurement Date:
Actuarial Valuation Date:

Mortality Basis

Retirement

Future Contributions

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CITY OF WILIISTON, FLORIDA

A participant who has attained their normal retirement age is eligible to
participate in the DROP for a period of up to 60 months. The DROP

accounts are credited with interest at the rate of 6.5O% per annum.
The Plan was established effective October 1,, 2004, pursuant to City
ordinance and has been amended several times since that date.
Since the completion of the previous valuation, Ordinances 638 and 641
were adopted. These Ordinances added a DROP provision. This addition
of the DROP had no actuarial impact.

Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation is as follows

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Remaining Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method
Non-lnvestment Expenses

September 30,2021
September 30,2O2t
October 7,2020

Aggregate
Level Percentage, Open
30 Years

Market Value
Liabilities have been loaded by 2.75% to account for
non-investment expenses.
Sex-distinct rates set forth in the RP-2000 Blue Collar
Mortality Table, with full generational improvements
in mortality using Scale BB. For non-retired
participants, sex-distinct rates set forth in the PUB-

2010 Headcount-Weighted Employee MortalityTable
for public safety employees (Below Median table for
males), with full generational improvements in
mortality using Scale MP-2018 and with ages set
forward one year (pre-retirement mortality); for non-
disabled retirees, sex-distinct rates set forth in the
PUB-2010 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Retiree
Mortality Table for public safety employees (Below

Median table for males), with full generational
improvements in mortality using Scale MP-2018 and
with ages set forward one year; for disabled retirees,
sex-distinct rates set forth in the PU8-2010
Headcount-Weighted Disabled Retiree Mortality
Table (80% general employee rates plus 20% public
safety employee rates), with full generational
improvements in mortality using Scale MP-2018
Retirement is assumed to occur at normal retirement
age.

Contributions from the employer and employees are
assumed to be made as legally required.

50



NOTES TO FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

ctw oF wtlusToN, F[oRtDA

Changes

Actuaria I Assu mptions:
lnvestment Rate of Return
Projected Sa la ry I ncreases
N on-l nvestment Expenses

lncludes lnflation at *

Discount Rate

Cost of Living Adjustments
Changes

*Same assumptions as used for the actuarial valuation of system.

Determination of Long-Term Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets:

Current membership in the Plan is comprised of the following

Group
Retirees and Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits
Terminated Plan Participants Entitled to but not yet

Receiving Benefits
Active Plan Participants

Total

Total Pension Liability
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Sponsor's Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of
Total Pension Liability (Asset)

Contributions from the employer and employees are
assumed to be made as legally required. Since the
prior measurement date, the mortality basis was

changed from the RP-2000 Blue Collar Mortality Table
with generational improvements in mortality using
Scale BB to selected PU8-2010 Mortality Tables with
generational improvements in mortality using Scale

MP-2018.

7.OOo/o

4.5O% per annum
Liabilities have been loaded by 2.75%
2.92%
7.OO% 12.77% per annum is due to inflation)
o.o%
No assumptions were changed since the prior
measurement date.

October 1,

2021

2I

s 2,578,]'62
{3.086.863)

s_______ls0sJ01)

IL9.73o/o

5

5

11

The components of the net pension liability (asset) of the sponsor on September 30, 2O2t,were as follows

lnvestment Category

Target

Allocation
Expected Long-Term

Real Return

Core Bonds

Core Plus

U.S. Large Cap Equity

U.5. Small Cap Equity

Non-U.S. Equity

Core Real Estate

Total or Weiehted Arithmetic Averase

!5.OOYo

$.00%
25.OO%

14.OO%

2L.OOo/o

to.oo%

IOO.OO%

1.60% per annum

2.10% per annum

4.50% per annum

5.50% per annum

6.70% per annum

5.00% per annum

4.38% per annum
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The differences between the actuarial financial statements and the pension financial statement were due
to timing differences.

The investments in the Police Officers separate Share Plan are not included in the calculation of the Plan

Fiduciary Net Position, however, are included in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position. These
investments totaled SEt+,S+g as of September 30, 202L.

Pension Expense
Service Cost

Other Recognized Changes in Net Pension Liability:
Expected lnterest Growth
lnvestment Gain/Loss
Demographic Gain/Loss
Employee Contributions
Admin istrative Expenses

Assumption Changes

Total Pension Expense

Deferred lnflows and Deferred Outflows of Resources:

Balance as of September 30, 2020
Amortization Payments
lnvestment Gain/Loss
Demographic Gain/Loss
Assumption Changes

Balance as of September 3O,2O2L

g__34.41e

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred lnflows
of Resources

s 727,576
(146,0s4)

320,739
55,777
s7,264

s_____________1ru! s_____________AEtQ

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred lnflows
of Resources

120,536

9r,37I
89,469
88,966
23,600

1,100

S____________l&L1s:L S,__-_____ArsJ42

Rate 7.00% 1% Increase

246,84r s
(65,650)

65,649 s
63,205
47,73s
4,602

S 2,868,2s1 5 2,578,162 S

(3,085,853) (3,086,863)

S rgo,o+z

(4321

(80,389)
(11,431)

(26,986)

t2,234
77,376

Amortization schedule for deferred outflows and inflows of resources

Year Ending
September 30,

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

Thereafter
Total

s

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability {Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate:

Discount
1% Decrease

Total Pension Liability
Less Fiduciary Net Position
Net Pension Liability (Asset)

2,333,245
(3.086,863)

,:_____2EEp L____1s08J01) s______!s3818)
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Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset):

Reporting Period Ended September 30,2O2O

Change for a Year:

Service Cost

I nterest
Unexpected lnvestment I ncome

Demographic Experience

Employer Contributions

Employee Contributions

Benefit Payments and Refunds

Administrative Expenses

Assumption Changes

Reporting Period Ended September 30, 2021

Name of Pension Plan:

Legal Plan Administrator:

Type of Plan:

Current Contribution
Requirements:

Pension Plan Reporting:

Description of Benefit Terms:
Employees Covered:

Types of Benefits Offered
Basic Pension Formula:

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary

Net Position lbl(a)

s 2,s32,86e s 12,624,67s1 s (e1,806)

Net Pension

Asset la+bl

r30,047

181,889

lss,7t7l

(1s3,662)

Is1.2641

(782,32r\
(320,739)

(98,038)

.26,s86l.
153,662

t2,234

130,o47

(432)
(320,739)

lss,7L7l
(98,038)

(26,986)

t2,234
1s7.2641

s________2f'3,!62 s_8086.s€3) s________15082!)

General Employees Plan

Retirement PIan and Trust for General Employees-The government sponsors and administers the
Retirement Plan and Trust for the General Employees of the government (the Plan). The Plan is considered
a defined benefit single-employer plan and is accounted for as a separate pension trust fund. The Plan
covers all full-time general employees. A government employee shall become a participant of the Plan at
the time of employment.

Retirement Plan for the General Employees of the City of Williston.
Board of Trustees of the Retirement Plan for the General Employees of
the City of Williston Single-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan.

Single-E mployer Defined Benefit Pension Plan.

Employer contributions are actuarially determined, employees
contribute 5.00% of pensionable earnings; employee contribution
requirement may be amended by City ordinance but employer
contribution requirement is subject to State minimums.
The Plan issues a stand-alone financial report each year, which contains
information about the Plans fiduciary net position. The Plan's fiduciary
net position has been determined on the same basis used by the pension
plan and is equal to the market value of the assets as calculated under
the accrual basis of accounting. This report is available to the public at
the Plan's administrative office: Retirement Department, Florida League
of Cities, lnc. P.O. Box!757,Tallahassee, Florida 32302, (800)342-3112.

Full-time employees of the City of Williston, other than Police Officers
and the City Manager.
Retirement, disability, and pre-retirement death benefits.
2.25% of average earnings times service.
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The early retirement pension is actuarially equivalent to the normal
retirement pension.

The disability pension is actuarially equivalent to the normal retirement
pension.

The pre-retirement death benefit is actuarially equivalent to the normal
retirement pension and is payable as a single life annuity or as a single
lump sum payment to the beneficiary of a vested participant. Return of
accumulated employee contributions (payable to the beneficiary of a

non-vested pa rticipant).
Age 62 with at least five years of service.
Age 55 with at least five years of service.
L00% vesting after five years of service.

Single life annuity. Actuarially equivalent 10-year certain and life
annuity. Actuarially equivalent s\yo, 662/3yo,75%o, or 100% joint and
contingent annuity. Actuarially equivalent single lump sum payment.
Any other actuarially equivalent form of payment approved by the Board
of Trustees.
Average of the highest five years of pensionable earnings out of the last
10 years; pensionable earnings include total compensation other than
bonuses, lump sum payments, overtime pay, and extraordinary
compensation.
None
A deferred retirement option plan (DROP) is available to those
participants who have attained their early or normal retirement age and
individuals may participate in the DROP for up to 60 months; DROP

accounts are credited with interest at the rate of 6.5O% per annum.
The Plan was established effective October 1, 1983, pursuant to City
ordinance and has been amended several times since that date.
The benefit terms did not change from the prior measurement date.

Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation is as follows

Early Retirement Adjustment:

Disability Pension:

Pre-Retirement Death Benefit:

Normal Retirement Age
Early Retirement Age:

Vesting Requirement:
Form of Payment:

Average Earnings:

Cost-of-Living Adjustment:
DROP:

Legal Authority:

Changes

Valuation Date
ActuarialCost Method
Amortization Method
Remaining Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method
Mortality Basis

October 7,2O2O

Aggregate
Level Percentage, Open
30 Years

Market Value
Pre-retirement mortality is based on the sex-

distinct rates set forth in the PU8-2010 Headcount-
Weighted Below Media n Em ployee Mortality Ta ble
for general employees, with full generational
improvements in mortality using Scale MP-2018
and with male ages set back one year; post-
retirement mortality is based on the sex.distinct
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Retirement

Non-lnvestment Expenses

Future Contributions

Changes

Actuarial Assumptions:
lnvestment Rate of Return
Projected Salary lncreases
Non-lnvestment Expenses

lncludes lnflation at *

Discount Rate

Cost of Living Adjustments
Changes

*Same assumptions as used for the actuarial valuation of system

Current membership in the Plan is comprised of the following:

G

Retirees and Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits
Terminated Plan Participants Entitled to but not yet

Receiving Benefits
Plan Participants:

Active
Total

Total Pension Liability
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Sponsor's Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of
Total Pension Liability

rates set forth in the PU8-2010 Headcount-
Weighted Below Median Healthy Retiree Mortality
Table for general employees, with full generational

improvements in mortality using Scale MP-2018
and with male ages set back one year.

Retirement is assumed to occur at normal
retirement age.

Liabilities have been loaded by 2.75% to account
for non-investment expenses.

Contributions from the employer and employees
are assumed to be made as legally required.
Since the prior measurement date, the mortality
basis was changed from the RP-2000 Combined
Mortality Table with generational improvements
in mortality using Scale BB to selected PUB-2010

M ortal ity Ta bles with generationa I im provements

in mortality using Scale MP-2018.

7.OO%

4.OO%

Liabilities have been loaded by 2.25%
3.25%
7.OO% (2.77% per annum is due to inflation)
o.o%
No assumptions were changed since the prior
measurement date.

October 1,

202t

100

3,802,225
$,534,4241

s______iaz12;!99)

745.5%

19

49

32

Net Pension tiability (Asset)

The components of the net pension liability of the sponsor on September 30, 2021, were as follows:

s
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The differences between the actuarial financial statements and the pension financial statement were due
to timing differences related to investments.

Pension Expense
Service Cost

Other Recognized Changes in Net Pension Liability:
Expected lnterest Growth
lnvestment Gain/Loss
Demographic Gain/Loss
Employee Contributions
Administrative Expenses

Assumption Changes

Pension Expense (Negative)

Total of Components:
Balance as of September 30, 2020

Amortization Payments
lnvestment Gain/Loss
Demographic Gain/Loss
Assumption Changes

Balance as of September 3O,2O2L

Year Ending
September 30.

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

Thereafter
Total

308,915
3O4,767

290,545
234,8O9

74,325
17,885

s 182,371

(42,61sl,
(rse,847l

(78,869)

|167,4371

24,O17

20.732

s_________lp1JL)

Determination of Long-Term Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets

Deferred Inflows and Deferred Outflows of Resources:

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
lnflows of
Resources

566,939
(364,388)

597,410
49,335

381,350

5________433.227 5___________123@16

Other amounts reported as Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of Resources related to
pensions will be recognized in Pension Expense as follows:

s 579,63I s
(146,404]|

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred lnflows
of Resources

s 14t,356 s
95,946
80,274
76,09L
39,560

lnvestment Category

Target

Allocation
Expected Long-Term

Real Return

Core Bonds

Core Plus

U.S. Large Cap Equity

U.S. Small Cap Equity

Non-U.S. Equity

Core Real Estate

Total or Weishted Arithmetic Averase

75.OO%

$.00%
25.OOo/o

14.OO%

21.OO%

to.oo%

100.00%

1.60% per annum

2.10% per annum

4.50% per annum

5.50% per annum

6.70% per annum

5.00% per annum

4.38% per annum
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Sensitivity of the Net Pension tiability (Assetf to Changes in the Discount Rate

196 Decrease
Discount

Rate - 7.00% 1% lncrease
Total Pension Liability
Less Fiduciary Net Position
Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Reporting Period Ended September 30,2O2O
Change for a Year:

Service Cost
I nterest
Unexpected lnvestment lncome
Demographic Experience
Employer Contributions
Employee Contributions
Benefit Payments and Refunds
Administrative Expenses

Assumption Changes

Reporting Period Ended September 30,2O2L

Assets
Cash and Money Market
lnvestment in External lnvestment

Pool at FairValue
Contributions Receivable

Total Assets

liabilities
Accrued Expenses

Total Liabilities
Net Positions - Held in Trust

for Pension Benefits

s (1.2s0.100) s {1,732.199) s (2.131,706)

$ 4,294,324 s
|s.534.4241

3,802,225 s
|s.s34.4241

3,402,718
|s.s34.4241

Total Pension
tiabilitv lal

5 +,oto,stt

782,31t
288,495

(49,335)

{.374,827_l

(381,3s0)

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position (bl

s (4,850,355)

(331,114)
(597,410)

(26,952)
(67,4371

3r4,827
24,Ot7

Net Pension

Asset la+bl
s 1773,424)

782,3It
(42,6t9)

(597,410)

(49,335)
(26,952)
(67,4371

24,Ot7
(381.350)

s_______3J02225 s___J5"s3A,4u) s__!fta!99)

Combining Schedule of Fiduciary
Net Position

Pension Trust Funds
September 30,2O2L

Retirement
Plan and Trust
for the Police

Retirement
Plan and Trust
for the General

Emplovees Total

s 23,720 s 38,686 s 62,4O5

3,364,854
10.755

5,487,938
7.744

8,952,792
18,499

3.399.329 5,534,368 8,933,697

3.070 4,738 7,208
3,070 4,738 7,208

S__3.3962s9 S___5t30230 S______ rp26lg9
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Combining Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Pension Trust Funds

For The Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021

Retirement
Plan and Trust
for the Police

Officers

Retirement
Plan and Trust
for the General

Emolovees Total
Additions

Contribution:
Employer
State
Employees

Total Contributions
lnvestment Earnings

Total Additions

Deductions
Benefits Paid

Lump Sum Distributions
Ad min istrative Expenses

Total Deductions

Change in Net Position

Net Position Held in Trust for
Pension Benefits, Beginning of Year

s 98,038
32,834
24,805

26,952

67,379

I24,990
32,834
92,784

s s

755,677
549,215

94,337
928,52s

250,008
L,477,740

704,892 t,022,856 L,727,748

109,037
44,627
73,415

276,670
98,155
24,740

325,707
142,782
38,155

167,079 339,s6s 506,644

537,813

2.858,446

683,291

4,846,939

L,22r,rO4

7,705,385

Net Position Held in Trust for
Pension Benefits, End ofYear s_______3.396259 5- -___1J30230 s--_!p2flt89

Florida State Retirement System - Pension Plan

Beginning in2O!7, all Fire Fighters of the City are eligible to participate in the Florida State Retirement System

(the System). This System was created by the Florida Legislature and is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer
defined benefit, and public retirement plan available to governmental units within the State of Florida. The

System issued a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required

supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the State of Florida

Division of Retirement, Department of Management Services, P.O. Box 9000, Tallahassee, Florida 323L5, or
by calling (850) 488-5706.

All fire employees of the City are eligible to participate in the System. Special risk employees who retire
at or after age 55, with six years of creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly
for life, equal to the product of: 1) average monthly compensation in the highest five years of creditable
service; 2) creditable service during the appropriate period; and 3) the appropriate benefit percentage.

Benefits fully vest on reaching six years of service. Vested employees may retire after six years of
creditable service and receive reduced retirement benefits. The System also provides death benefits,

disability benefits, and annual cost-of-living adjustments. Benefits are established by Florida Statute.
Beginning in 2O7t, the state mandated a 3% contribution to the plan by the employees. The City currently
only has fire employees that participate in Florida Retirement System.
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The funding methods and the determination of benefits payable are provided in various acts of the Florida
Legislature. Theseactsprovidethatemployers,suchastheCity,arerequiredtocontribute25.8g%ofthe
compensation for Regular Special Risk and 37.76% for Administrative (with 1.66% for HIS) as of
September 30,2O2t. ln addition, employees that are not participating in the DROP program are required
to contribute 3% of their gross salary.

The City contributed tOO% of the required contributions to the System for the year ended September 30,
2O2L, as follows:

Year Amount
2027 s 90,882

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, ond Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of Resources
Related to Pensions-At September 3O,2O21, the City reported a net pension liability of 5161,330 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,
2O2t, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an

actuarial valuation as of July L,2027. The City's proportionate share of the net pension liability was based
on projection of the City's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating members, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2027, the City's
proportionate share of the FRS liability was .0021357397% an decrease of .00055559285%from the prior
year. The City opted to pay retirement on the fire employees in the 2O2O|2O27 budget process.

Pension Expense ond Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of Resources-For the year
ended September 30,2027, the Sponsor will recognize a Pension Expense of 547,347 . On September 30,
2021, the Sponsor reported Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of Resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred lnflow
Funds

Deferred Outflow
Funds

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience
Change in Assumptions
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings

on Pension Plan lnvestments
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between the

City Contributions and Proportionate Share of
Contributions

City Contributions Subsequent to Measurement Date
Total

s 27,653 s
110,390

279,865
23,080

562,842

17I,539

s 380,988 s 734.331

The Deferred Outflows of Resources related to pensions totaling S23,080 resulting from City contributions
subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ending September 30,2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
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Year

Total
lnflows/Outflows
5 Q7,4r9)

(s7,2891

lros,4o7l
l1s7,7271

(24,631)

t____,___37s.473

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

Thereafter
Total

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the July L, 2O2O, actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

lnflation
Salary lncreases
lnvestment Rate of Return 7.10%, Net Pension Plan

2.40%
3.25% lncluding lnflation
lnvestment Expense, lncluding
lnf lation

Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB

The actuarial assumptions used in the July t,2O2O valuation, were based on the results of an actuarial

experience study for the period June 30, 2013 through June 30,2O2O.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges

are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real

rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target
allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized

in the following table:

Asset Class

Target
Allocation

Annual
Arithmetic

Compound
Annual

(Geometric)
Return

Standard
Deviation

Cash

Fixed lncome
Global Equity
Real Estate

Private Equity
Strategic lnvestments

Total

t.o%
20.o%

54.2%

103%
703%
3.7%

2.7%

3.8%
82%
7.1%

LL.7%

s.7%

2.7%

3.7%
6.7%
6.2%

8.5%
5.4%

r.2%
33%
178%
L3.8%

26.4%

8.4%

,____roo%_

Discount Rate-The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00 percent. ln general,

the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability under GASB Statement No.67 is equal to the
single rate equivalent to discounting at the long-term expected rate of return for benefit payments prior

to the projected depletion date. The discount rate used in the 2020 valuation was not changed from 2019.
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The rate of return assumption is a prescribed assumption as defined by ASOP 27. The 7.00 percent

assumption was adopted by the 2018 FRS Actuarial Assumption Conference.

Sensitivity of the City's Proportionote Share of the Net Position Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate-
The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 5.80 percent, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.80 percent) or 1-

percentage-point higher (7.80 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease

5.80%
Current Discount

Rate - 6.80%

1% lncrease
7.80%

City's Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability s 72I,480 s 161,330 s (306,Ss2)

FRS Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position-Detailed information about pension plan's fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued FRS Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.

Health Insurance Subsidy (HlS) Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description-fhe HIS Pension Plan (HlS Plan) is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan established to provide a monthly subsidy payment to retired members of any state-
administered retirement system in order to assist such retired members in paying the costs of health
insurance. Persons are eligible for HIS payments who are retired under a state-administered retirement
system, or a beneficiary who is a spouse or financial dependent entitled to receive benefits under a state-
administered retirement system, except those individuals who are pension recipients under Sections

121.40,237.08(18)(a), and 250.22, Florida Statutes, or recipients of health insurance coverage under
Section tLO.1232, Florida Statutes, or any other special pension or relief act are not eligible for such
pension payments. A person is deemed retired from a state-administered retirement system when he or
she terminates employment with all employers participating in the FRS and:

For a member of the FRS investment plan, the participant meets the age or service requirements to
qualify for normal retirement per Section L27.O2L129), Florida Statutes and meets the definition of
retiree in Section L2L.45OL(21, Florida Statutes.

For a member of the FRS defined benefit pension plan, or any employee who maintains creditable
service under the pension plan and the investment plan, the member begins drawing retirement
benefits from the pension plan.

Any person retiring on or after July !,2OOt, as a member of the FRS, including a member of the investment
plan, must satisfy the vesting requirements for his or her membership class under the pension plan as

administered under Chapter L2l, Florida Statutes. Any person retiring due to disability must qualify for a

regular or in-line-of-duty disability benefit per provisions under Chapter 112, Florida Statutes.
Additionally, participants in the Senior Management Service Optional Annuity Program and the State City
System Optional Retirement Program are not eligible to receive benefits from the HIS Plan.

Benefits Provided-The benefit is a monthly payment to assist retirees of state-administered retirement
systems in paying their health insurance costs and is administered by the Department of Management
Services, Division of Retirement.
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For the fiscal year ended June 30, 202L, eligible retirees and beneficiaries received a monthly HIS payment
equal to the number of years of creditable service completed at the time of retirement multiplied by 55.
The payments are at least $30 but not more than S1SO per month, pursuant to Section 172.363, Florida
Statutes. To be eligible to receive a HIS benefit, a retiree under a state-administered retirement system
must provide proof of health insurance coverage, which can include Medicare.

Contributions-The HIS Program is funded by required contributions from FRS participating employers as

set by the Legislature. Employer contributions are a percentage of gross compensation for all active FRS

members. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021,the contribution rate was L.66 percent of payroll. The
state contributed 100 percent of its statutorily required contributions for the current and preceding three
years. HIS contributions are deposited in a separate trust fund from which HIS payments are authorized.
HIS benefits are not guaranteed and are subject to annual legislative appropriation. ln the event the
legislative appropriation or available funds fail to provide full subsidy benefits to all participants, benefits
may be reduced or canceled.

The City's contributions to the HIS defined benefit pension plan are reported as a total with the pension
plan contributions listed above.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, ond Deferred Outflows of Resources ond Deferred lnflows of
Resources Reloted to HIS-At September 30,2027, the City reported a net pension liability of 5124,056
for its proportionate share of the net pension liabilityfor HlS. The net pension liabilitywas measured as

of June 30,2O2t, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of July L,2027- The City's proportionate share of the net pension liability was
based on projection of the City's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
projected contributions of all participating members, actuarially determined. At June 30,2027 the City's
proportionate share was .00101L42522%, which was an decrease of .00011709967% from its
proportionate share measured as of June 30, 20L9.

For the year ended September 30,2021, the City recognized pension expense is S22,683. ln addition, the
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from
the following sources:

Deferred
lnflow
Funds

Deferred
Outflow

Funds
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience
Change in Assumptions
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on

Pension Plan lnvestments
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between the City

Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions
City Contributions Subsequent to Measurement Date

Total

5 4,r52
9,749

s 52

5,712

729

53,067
1.58s

10,974

s 68.682 S re .rSS

The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions totaling S1,585 resulting from City contributions
subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ending September 3O,2027. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
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Seotember 30. lnflows/outflows
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

Thereafter
Total

76,320

14,656
10,338
6,083
3,364

198

s

Actuorial Assumptions-The total pension liability in the July 7,2O2t, actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

lnflation
Salary lncrease
Bond Buyer General Obligation 2O-Bond

Municipal Bond

5,_---_-_-,____5!,959

2.40%
3.25Yo Av erage, I ncluding lnflation

3.50%

Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 7,2O2I, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1-, 2008 through June 30, 2013.

Discount Rate-The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was2.2L percent. ln general,
the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability under GASB Statement No. 67 is equal to the
single rate equivalent to discounting at the long-term expected rate of return for benefit payments prior
to the projected depletion date. Because the HIS benefit is essentially funded on a pay-as-you-go basis,
the depletion date is considered to be immediate, and the single equivalent discount rate is equal to the
municipal bond rate selected by the plan sponsor. The discount rate used in the 2021 valuation was
updated from 2.2L percent, reflecting the change in the Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond
Municipal Bond lndex as of June 30,2021..

Sensitivity of the City's Proportionate Shore of the Net Pension Liobility to Chonges in the Discount Rate-
The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 2.21 percent, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (1.21 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (3.21 percent) than the current rate:

196 Decrease

t.2L%
Current Discount

Rate2.2L%
1% lncrease

3.2L%
City's Proportionate Share of the

Net Pension Liability s 143,433 s 124,066 s TOA,ZOO

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position-Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued FRS Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.
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Note 9 - Other Disclosures

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts
Allowances for doubtful accounts at September 3O,2021, are as follows:

Utility Fund
General Fund
Airport Fund

Total Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

s 58,314
16,339

62,I95
5____136.848

Note 10 - Other lnformation

Risk Management
The government is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft ol damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; workers'compensation; and natural disasters for which the government
carries commercial insurance. There were no settlements in excess of the insurance coverage in any of
the three prior fiscal years.

Contingent Liabilities
Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable
funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined
at this time, although the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Note 11 - Subsequent Events

Subsequent events were evaluated through the date of the financial statements were available to be
issued. The financial statements were approved and authorized to be issued by management on June 30,
2O22. There were no items that required disclosure as of that date.
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REQUI RED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The following supplementary schedules present trend information regarding the retirement plans for the
City's General Employees and Police Officers retirement plans; retirement plans for the City's Firefighters
and Other Postemployment Benefits. This information is necessary for a fair presentation in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

RETIREMENT PLAN AND TRUST FOR POTICE OFFICERS

FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2I
SCHEDUTE OF CHANGES IN THE EMPLOYER'S NET PENSION

L|ABtLtTy (ASSETI AND RETATED RATTOS

2020 2019 20L8 20L7 20L6 2015 20t4
Total Pension Liability

Service Cost

lnterest on the Total Pension Liability

Demographic Experience

Assumption Changes

Benefit Payments, lncluding Refunds of
Em ployee Contributions

Net Change in Total Pension Liability

Total Pension tiability,
Beginning ofYear

Total Pension Liabilitn
End of Year (af

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Employer

Contributions - Employee

Net lnvestment lncome

Benefit Payments

Administrative Expense

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary

Net Position

Plan Fiduciary Net Position,
Beginning of Year

Plan Fiduciary Net Position,
End of Year (b)

Net Pension tiability (Asset) -

Ending (a) - (bf

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a

Percentage of Total Pension Liability

Covered Payroll+*

Net Pension liability as a Percentage

(74,3rr1 5
(18,598)

(269,174l,

54,37L
9.7Lt

(79,ss3) s
(18,330)

(r49,8711

37,231
8_354

s 130,047 s
181,889

(ss,7t7l
(s7,2641

(1s3,662)

45,293

2.532.869

q1a Rq6 (

138,458 s
186,496

(19,888)

9r,379 s
I47,704
(17,330)

6s,439

59,909 s
L36,436

19,567

(216,983)

113,336 s
169,828

5,253

101,591 s
757,787
(28,szsl

81,501 s
103,951

26,226
354,990

62,994

LL4,442

2,366,854 2,207,708

S z.s7a.r6z s 2.532.869 s 2-s8s.s2s s 7.?GE Bs4 q

s (e8,038) s (10s,s78) 5 (s7,04s) s po,446l s
(25,986) (25,ss8) 124,42r' (21,00s)

(s03,060) (L63,7691 (737,378\ 1773,4851
153,662 357,722 69,746 77,70r

72,234 L0,160

of Covered Payroll 0.OO% O.O0% O.OO% O.OO%

* GASBStatementNo.STwasadoptedforthe2014FiscalYearandtheL0-yeartrendinformationwill bedevelopedfrom
that date forward.

**For the 2017 fiscal year, the covered payroll was based on pensionable salary.

(462,7881 67,577 (178,094) (203,s10) (298,101) (202,169) (43,2O2) (2ZZ,64rl

12,624,6751 (2,692,2s21 (2,514,158) (2,3ro,6481 Q.072.5471 (1.810.3781 1J.767.1761 f1-544-5351

s (3.086.8631 s lz624.6751 s n.692.2s21 s {2.s14.1s81 s (2-310-6481 S (2c7)\471 q (1 slolTRl I (1 767't76\

l50R 7n1l q {91.805) s (106.727} s 1147.3041 s (103.s401 s t32.2601 s (3s9.6281 q (r7R 11Cl

1L9.73% 703.62% IO4.L3%o 106.22% 704.690/,

(3s7,7221

(s2,5s6)

2,585,525

q?? qqq

16s,746\ (7L, L01)

278,671 759,746

10,954 10,325

< 4447fi < 4o? ?4q

(54,37rl, (37,2311 (37,2361 (8s,337)

(38,307) s2,o99226,821 529,537

r.980.287 1.450.750 1.489.057 1,395,958

2.207 .LOg s 1.980.287 s 1.450.750 S 7.4A9.O57

(7s,00s)

(18,0s3)

2,555

37,236
10,065

724.79%

337 005

S (11e,278)

(21,100)

(134,338)

44,390

7,68s

s 363.641 s

LOL.63%

33 1.295

118.68%

1116 )44s q
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CITV OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

RETIREMENT PLAN AND TRUST FOR POLICE OFFICERS

FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2T
SCHEDUTE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

2020 2019 20LA 2017
Actuarially Determined Contribution
Contributions in Relation to the

Actuarially Determined Contribution
Contribution Defi ciency (Excess)

Covered Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage

of Covered Payroll

re
514-895 s

19.o4%

s L19,604 s

98,038
q

110,535 s

109,578

1.0s8 s

533.995 s

100,309 s

97,O45

3.264 s

4M,302 q

94,683 5

90,446

4.237 s
4o2 )4q q

82,868 s

74,3!L

80,72s s

79,553

75,774 s

7s,00s

169 s

337,056 s

tfi,Aas

779,278

11.7931

306,244

20t6

24.Ot%

20ts

22.25%

20t4

38.950A

8ss7 q 1177 s

s aF,aF, 1 ( !3t-296 s

20.5204 2t.44% 22.49o/o 20.44%
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FTORIDA

RETIREMENT PIAN AND TRUST FOR GENERAL EMPLOYEES

FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2I
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE EMPLOYER'S NET PENSION

L|ABtUW (ASSET)AND RELATED RATTOS

2020 20t9 2018 2r)L7

Total Pension Liability
Service Cost

lnterest on the Total Pension Liability
Demographic Experience
Assumption Changes

Benefit Payments, lncluding

Refunds of Employee Contributions
Net Change in Total Pension tiability

Total Pension tiability,
Beginning of Year

Total Pension tiability,
End of Year (al

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - Employer
Contributions - Employee

Net lnvestment lncome
Benefit Payments
Administrative Expense

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary
Net Position

Plan Fiduciary Net Position,
Beginning of Year

Plan Fiduciary Net Position,
End of Year (b)

Net Pension tiability
(Asset) - Ending (a) + (bl

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a

covered Payroll**

Net Pension liability as a Percentage

tzr,sg4 s
268,562

32,335
265,359

128,374 s
212,27!
ro4,482
695,988

s

2027

182,311 s
288,495
(49,33s)

(381,3s0)

(26,ss2], s
(67,4371

(928,s241

3r4,827
24,01.6

L89,778 s
278,676
(6s,801)

(2s,4741 s
(64,038)

(303,513)

246,250
19.065

t70,840 s
280,605

(223,6211

(30,143) s
(60,484)

1242,s7sl.
276,669

20.22L

14r,746 s
286,840

(rrs,227l

(107,990) s
(s3,296)

(338,1s7)

423,229
20.487

2016

818,859

?.019.080

s (32,832)
(4r,s37],

(343,ss1)

322,256
17,752

178,3r2]'

2015

95,558 s
297,696

(2s0,s74],

(302,s02)

? 380 lRO

2014

101,093
260,459

150,239

3,230,r41

lt12,LL4l
(48,s37)

(368,167].

384,331
74.t41

(L26,346l

(4.306.753)

(314,8261 (246,2sol

(274,7051 1s6,283

(276,6691 |423.2291

(48,84s) (109,870)

4.O79.362

1446.4t71 (322,2s6l. (201,s78) (zLL,3r3l

247,423 (361,300)

4.076.930 3.920.647 3.969.492

-s-1392,28 l-3J7j€39- J-g929@- S 3g6q4g7 \ 4.,794F.) { ?R17q?q ( ?olcnsn ( ??Rn?Rn

3.837.S39

(76,s821
(s3,684)

(s73,32s)

446,4L7
L9.911

(237,2631

(4.393.2421

(s0,643) s
(48,s33)

(3,20s)

207,578
14.972

5 5

(684,070) (L27,8r9l (36,312) (ss,727l,

(4.8s0.3s41 4.722.s441 (4.6A6.232\ t4-530.5051

s (s.s34.4241 s {4.8s0.3s41 s (4.722.544\ s 14.6A6.232\

(4,314.930)

s (4,630,s0s) s @,393,2421 5 (4,314,930) s (4,433,099)

118,169

(4.433.099)

s 073,4241 s (801,897) s 016,7401 s (ss1.143)

Percentage ofTotal Pension tiability 14556% 77A.97% 720.45% 778.06% 773.s7%

s 1.144.3S1 5 7,166.77t S 1.0s3.876 S 89s.3s1 S 787.s76

of Covered Payroll O.OO%o O.OO% O.OO% O.OO%

* GASB Statement No. 67 was adopted for the 2014 Fiscal Year and the 10-year trend information will be developed

from that date forward.
t*For the 2017 fiscal year, the covered payroll was based on pensionable salary.

s (1.732.1991 s (sss,303) 5 (1,2ss,8s01 s (1,0s2,71e)

s

774.47%

880_740

73r.r4%

a?4 054

L42.92%

941 1a5( (
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CITY OF WILIISTON, FLORIDA

RETIREMENT PIAN AND TRUST FOR GENERAT EMPLOYEES

FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2I
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Actuarially Determined Contribution
Contributions in Relation to the

Actuarially Determined Contribution
Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

Covered Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage

2021

s

s 1.144.391 s 1 166771 q 1 053 R76 (

2020 2019 2018 2017

26,r6s s 89,09s s 75,498 $ s6,834 s 106,400 s

26,952 25,474 30,143 107,990 76,582
(7871 s 63.62r s 45.355 s f s1 .1s61 s )9 R1F q

20t5

57,705

32,832

)4 R7?-

AAoiLn q

3.73/o

$ zq,rct S

2015

50,643

ffi4?Ei

2014

50,478

LL2,IT4
161 6161

General
Employees'

Pension Plan

(
8qs ?51 q 7R7 q7F. ( 941.185 s 824.054

5.38% 73.6r%

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPTEMENTARY INFORMATION

Note 1: Methods and Assumptions Used in Calculations of Actuarially Determined Contributions
The actuarially determined contribution rates in the schedule of contributions are calculated as of October t, 20L9, one year prior to the end of the
fiscal year in which contributions are reported. The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used to determine the most recent contribution
rate reported in that schedule:

of Covered Payroll 2.36To 2.L8% 2.86% 12.06% 9.72%

+GASB Statement No. 67 was adopted for the 2014 Fiscal Year and the 10-Year trend information will be developed from that date forward.

Valuation Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method
Salary lncrease
Discount Rate

Note 2: Changes in Assumptions

There were no changes in assumptions in either plan

Police
Officers'

Pension Plan

October 1, 2019 October 1,2019
Aggregate Aggregate

Level Percentage, Level Percentage,

Open Open

30 Years 30 Years

Market Value Market Value
4.5% perAnnum 4.00% perAnnum

7.OO% 7.OO%
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FLORTDA RETTREMENT SYSTEM PENSTON PLAN (1)

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

202t 2020 2019 2018

City's Proportion of the Net

Pension Liability

City's Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability

City's Covered Payroll (June 30) S 359,481 S

City's Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability as a

Percentage of its

Covered Payroll

2017

0.0021357330% 0.0028013258% 0.O02L972346% 0.OOL928'260% O.OOL20060470%

s 161,330 s t,2r4,\36 s

302,438 s

756,697 s

299,039 s

580,882 s

255,001 s

355,131

L54,244

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a

Percentage of the
Total Pension Liability

Contractually Required

Contribution

Contributions in Relation to the
Contribution

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

City's Covered Payroll

(September 30)

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll

44.88Yo 407.45% 253.O4% 227.80% 230.24%

O.OOo/o 82.6L% 78.85% 84.26o/o 83.89%

SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS

202t 2020 2019 2018 20tt

S 86,024 S 94,233 s 73,666 s 59,700 S ss,327

(86,024) (94,233) (73,666l. (s9,700) (ss,327)

s 3s6,s17 s 400,474 s 31s,4s4 s 2s0,613 5 1s4,244

24.r0% 23.53o/o 2335% 23.82% 3s.87%

(71 2OI7 was the first year that the City's Firefighters were entered into the Plan. lnformation for the subsequent ten years' data will
be accumulated.
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FTORIDA

FLORIDA HEALTH TNSURANCE SUBSTDY PENSTON PrAN (U
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION IIABIIITY

2021 2020 2019 2018

City's Covered Payroll (June 30) S :SS,+A1 5 302,438 5 299,039 S 255,001 S t54,244

City's Proportion of the Net

Pension Liability

City's Proportionate Share of the

Net Pension Liability

City's Proportionate Share of the

Net Pension Liability as a

Percentage of its Covered Payroll

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

as a Percentage of the

Total Pension Liability

Contractually Required

Contribution

Contributions in Relation to the

Contractually Required

Contribution

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

City's Covered Payroll

(September 30)

Contributions as a Percentage

of Covered Payroll

20L7

o.ootot742522% O.OOrt2852490% O.OOO894L37L6% 0.00078074600% O.OOO47024L82%

s 124,056 s t37,791 s 100,04s s 82,63s s s0,280

34.5t% 45.56% 33.46% 32.47% 32.60%

o.00% 2.53% 3.OO% 2.t5% t.64%

SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS

2021 2020 2019 2018 20L7

s 4,t60 s 4,858 s 5,133 s 4,160 s 2,560

(4,160) (4,8s8) (s,133) (4,150) S (2,s60)

s 3s6,s17 s 4oo,474 s ErS,+s+ s 2s0,613 S Ls4,244

7.t7% I.2!o/o t.63% 1.65% t-66%

(Il 2OL7 was the first year that the City's Firefighters were entered into the Plan. lnformation for the subsequent ten years' data will be

accumulated.
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CIW OF WILIISTON, FTORIDA

oTHER POSTEMPTOYMENT BENEFTTS (OPEB) PIAN

SCHEDUTE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB TIABILITY

Fiscal Year

2021
Fiscal Year

2020
Fiscal Year

20L9
Fiscal Year

2018

Total OPEB Liability:
Service Cost

Expected lnterest Growth
Demographic Gain/Loss
Difference Between Expected and

Actual Expense Amortization
Changes in Assumptions and Other lnputs
Benefit Payments

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB liability - Beginning
Total OPEB tiability - Ending

Covered-Employee Payroll

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage

of Covered Payroll

s ss4,s61 s 449,644 s 3s2,637 s 3s6,2s0

s 2,1s0,28s s 2,12s,s27 s r,ZSO,S+Z s r,s86,2tt

25.79% 27.t5% 20.38% 22.460/"

s 127,835 s
13,998

(136,289)

702,24O

12,867)

97,224 s
9,456

(t,6241

48,542 s
12,783
(1,6s4)

.24,641)
(8so)

{.37,793)

52,877

13,394

(51,738)

2,941
(8so)

(4,040)

704,9I7

449,644

97,007

352,637

(3,613)

356,250

14,533

347,777

Note: No Plan assets are accumulated in a Trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75 to pay

related benefits.

Assumption Changes: Since the prior measurement date, the discount rate was decreased from 3.58% per annum to 3.00% per annum,
the monthly implied subsidy at age 55 lor lhe 2OI9l20 fiscal year for the retiree and his spouse was increased from $215 to 5250, and

the mortality basis was changed from the RP-2000 Mortality Table with generational improvements in mortality using Scale BB to the

PUB-2010 Mortality Table with generational improvements in mortality using Scale MP-2017.

Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB Statement No. 75 is applicable. Future years'

information will be displayed as it becomes available for a period of up to 10 years.

Since the prior measurement date, the discount rate was increased lrom 2.74% per annum to 2.43% per annum; the
healthcare cost trend rates were changed from 6.50% for the2O2O|2L fiscal year graded down to 5.00% per year

to 8.50% tor the 2O2O/2t fiscal year graded down lo 5.OO% per year; and the monthly implied subsidy at age 55

for the 2O2O|2I fiscal year for the retiree and his spouse was increased from 5267.50 to 5350.00.
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PURVIS GRAY

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROI. OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPTIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAI STATEMENTS

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standords,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Williston, Florida (the City) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2O2L, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated June 30,2022.

lnternal Control over Financial Reporting
ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal controlwas forthe limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
{lainesvillelOcalrrlT)/.laha.sseclSarir.sotal()rltrnclctlLakelandl?irrn1,,1

purvisgray.com

\lcrtbers ol .\rttr'ririlD ind lih)ri(lt lnstitlrlc\ ol (.crtiiirtl Prrblic 1\cd{rrr,rtauts
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPTIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

PE RFORM ED I N ACCORDANCE WITH G OVERN M ENT AU DITI NG STAN DARDS

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
G ove rn m e nt Auditi n g Sta nd ords.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Stondards in considering the City's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Qu",wG,%
June 30,2O22
Ocala, Florida
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PURVIS GRAY

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPTIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAT PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPTIANCE REqUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited the City of Williston, Florida's (the City) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement, that could have a direct and material effect
on each of the City's major federal programs for the year ended September 30,2021. The City's major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibi lity
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City's major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Stondords, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federol
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrotive Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards, the Uniform Guidance, require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether non-compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
ln our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for
the year ended September 30,2O2L.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
(iairre.svil/elOcalalThllaiasseclS;rnrsotal{)rlantlt;l[,akclandlThnrpa

purvisgray.com
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPTIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAT PROGRAM

AND ON INTERNAT CONTROT OVER COMPTIANCE REqUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. ln planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine
the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned

functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, non-compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A materiol weokness in internol control over complionce is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material non-compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A sign ificant deficiency in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in

internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Q-uwQ ,ry
June3O,2O22
Ocala, Florida
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PURVIS GRAY

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH SECTION 218.415, FTORIDA STATUTES - INVESTMENT

OF PUBTIC FUNDS

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

We have examined the City of Williston's (the City) compliance with the requirements of Section 2t8.4L5,
Florida Statutes, Local Government lnvestment Policies, with regards to the City's investments during the
year ended September 30, 2027. Management is responsible for the City's compliance with those
requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our
examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the City complied, in all material respects,
with the requirements referenced above. An examination involves performing procedures to obtain
evidence about whether the City complied with the specified requirements. The nature, timing, and
extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgment, including an assessment of the risks of
material non-compliance, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with specified
requirements.

ln our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements during
the fiscal year ended September 30,202'J,.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Florida Auditor General, the Mayor and
Council Members, and applicable management, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Q*nutQrry.
June3O,2O22
Ocala, Florida

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Cairresvrl/c' l ()cir/a l Ihllafias:ee l Strra.sofa l Orlantl<> l l.rtkeltntl l Tttnrpa

purvisgray.com
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FTORIDA

SCHEDUTE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2I

Assistance

Listing

No.

Grantor's

Contract

Number

Project

Award ExpendituresFederal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Project Title

Federal Aviation Administration

Florida Department of Transportation

Airport lmprovement Program

Airport lmprovement Program

Total Federal Aviation Administration

U.S. Department of Agriculture

Office of Rural Development

Community Facilities Grant

Community Facilities Grant

Total Federal Aviation Administration

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity

Community Redevelopment Block Grant

Total Federal Aviation Adminisration

20.106-COVtD-19

20.106-COVtD-19

ro.755

LO.766

14.228

x60-soG-3- 12-0087 -023-2020

x60-soG-3- 12-0087 -023 -202L

usDA (FY2021)

usDA (FY2o2o)

19DB-ON-05-48-02-N33

s 30,000

52,000

30,000

52,000

s

82,000 82,000

54,500

45,846

64,500

8,338

r70,446 72,938

659,fi8

659,178

Total Federal Awards 5 892,446 S gr+,rr0

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

The Schedule of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the City of Williston City and is presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Therefore, amounts presented

in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in, the preparation ofthe basic financial statements.

Note 2 - lndirect Cost Rate

The City has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

700,000

700,000
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND qUESTIONED COSTS -
FEDERATAWARD PROGRAMS

CITY OF WILLISTON

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2I

1. Summary of Audit Results

l. Type of Audit Report lssued on Financial Statements:

Unmodified Opinion

ll. Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:

Audit disclosed no significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control.

lll. Non-Compliance Material toAudited FinancialStatements:

Audit disclosed no material instances of non-compliance.

lV. Significant Deficiencies andlor Material Weaknesses in Internal Control over Major Federal
Award Programs:

Audit disclosed no material instances and/or significant deficiencies of non-compliance.

V. Type of Audit Report lssued on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Major Federal
Awards Programs:

Unmodified Opinion

Vl. Major Programs:

Federal:
r U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

o State of Florida Department of Economic Opportunity

Vll. Dollar Threshold Used to Distinguish Between Type A and Type B Federal Programs

Sz50,ooo for Federal Programs

Vlll. Auditee Qualification as Low-Risk Auditee for Federal Programs

The auditee does not qualify as a low-risk auditee per the criteria set forth in Section .530 of the
Uniform Guidance.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND qUESTIONED COSTS -
FEDERALAWARD PROGRAMS

CITY OF WITLISTON

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2I

7. Findings Related to the Financial Statements Required to be Reported under Generallv Accepted
Gove rn me nt Aud iti na Sta nda rds IG AG ASI

Noted no current year recommendations.

2. Findings and Questioned Costs for Maior Federal Programs

Noted no current year recommendations.

3. Prior Audit Findings

Noted no prior year findings.

79



PURVIS GRAY

MANAGEMENT LETTER

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of the City of Williston (the City) as of and for the fiscal year

ended September 30,2O2!, and have issued our report thereon dated June 30,2022.

Auditor's Responsibility
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Stondords, issued

by the Comptroller General of the United States and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.

Other Reporting Requirements
We have issued our lndependent Auditor's Report on lnternal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards, lndependent Auditor's report on Complionce for each Major Federol
Program and Report on lnternal Contol over Compliance, Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs and
lndependent Accountant's Report on an examination conducted in accordance with AICPA Professional
Standards, AT-C Section 315, regarding compliance requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550,
Rules of the Auditor General. Disclosures in those reports and schedule, which are dated June,30,2O22,
should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Prior Audit Findings
Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor Generol, requires that we determine whether or not corrective
actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding financial audit
report. All prior year comments have been addressed.

OfficialTitle and Legal Authority
Section 10.554(1Xi)4., Rules of the Auditor Generol, requires that the name or official title and legal

authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this
management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The legal authority for the
City is reported in Note 1 to the basic financial statements. The City included the following blended
component unit:

r Williston Community Redevelopment Agency

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
fiairrc.svillelOcrr/al'1?r/lah,r.s.s.'c'lSaraso&rlOrlzurdoll.alicl;tnc!l'lirutltit
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

MANAGEMENT TETTER

Financial,Condition and Management
Sections 10.554(1xi)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor Generol, require us to apply appropriate
procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the City has met one
or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific
condition(s) met. ln connection with our audit, we determined that the City did not meet any of the
conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1xi)5.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial
condition assessment procedures for the City. lt is management's responsibility to monitor the City's
financial condition, and ourfinancial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by
management and the review of financial information provided by same.

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any recommendations
to improve financial management. Please see the attached Management Letter Comment.

Additional Matters
Section 10.554(1Xi)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate non-compliance with
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occuired, or are likely to have occurred,
that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but warrants the attention of
those charged with governance. ln connection with our audit, we did not note any such findings.

Purpose of this Letter
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor
General, Federal, State, and other granting agencies, the Mayor and Council Members, and applicable
management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

We wish to take this opportunity to thank you and your staff for the cooperation and courtesies extended
to us during the course of our audit. Please let us know if you have any questions or comments concerning
this letter, our accompanying reports, or other matters.

Q*nw6,%
June 3O,2O22
Ocala, Florida
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Date: 08/02/2022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

RESOLUTION 2022-49:

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE AMENDMENT TO THE
STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC
TRANSPORTATION GRANT AGREEMENT FOR FINANCIAL PROJECT
NUMBER 442505.I-94.23 REGARDING THE WILLISTON MUNICIPAL
AIRPORT AVIATION TERMINAL BUILDING; AUTHORIZING
APPROPRIATE PARTIES TO SIGN ANY DOCUMENTS REQUIRED TO
EXECUTE SUCH AMENDMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

REQUESTED BY: BENTON STEGALL AIRPORT MANAGER
PREPARED BY: KIERSTEN BALLOU AIRPORT MANAGER

FISCAL IMPACTS: _. This a grant funded project with no negativity fiscal impact on the
airport or the city.

RECOMMENDED ACTION : Staff recommends approval.

ATTACHMENTS:

CONTRACT RESOLUTION 2022-49 MAP

LEASE OTHER DOCUMENTS

APPROVED

DENIED

XX

XX

COUNCIL ACTION:



RES OLUTION NUMB.NR 2022-49

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE AMENDMENT TO THE
STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PUBLIC
TRANSPORTATION GRANT AGREEMENT FOR FINANCIAL PROJECT
NUMBER 442505.I-94-23 REGARDING THE WILLISTON MUNICIPAL
AIRPORT AVIATION TERMINAL BUILDING; AUTHORIZING
APPROPRIATE PARTIES TO SIGN ANY DOCUMENTS REQUIRED TO
EXECUTE SUCH AMENDMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the Williston Municipal Airport is in need of a new general aviation
terminal building; and

WHEREAS, grant funding is available for the construction of a general aviation
terminal building; and

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Department of Transportation previously submitted to
the City a Public Transportation Grant Agreement (hereinafter "Agreement");

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Department of Transportation has submitted to the
City a Fublic Transportation Grant Agreement Amendment (hereinafter "Amendment")
and

WHEREAS, the Williston Council President is an appropriate party to execute
documents related to such Amendment; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the City's best interest to
authorize the City Council President to execute this Amendment, an unexecuted copy
of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Williston to execute the Amendment

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The above recitals are all true and accurate and are hereby incorporated
herein and made a part of this resolution.

Section 2. The City Council hereby approves the Amendment, attached hereto and
incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

Section 3. The City Council President is hereby authorized to execute on behalf of the
City such documents as are required to enter the Amendment.

Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.



PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the City Council this 2"a day of August, 2022

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORTDA

BY:
Debra Jones, City Council President

Attest, By the Clerk of the
City Council of the
City of Williston Florida:

Approved as to Form and Legality:

Latricia Wright, City Clerk S. Scott Walker, City Attorney or
Kiersten N. Ballou, City Attorney



STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
AMENDMENT TO THE PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION

GRANT AGREEMENT

Fom 725-000-03
STRATEGIC

DEVELOPMENT
occo1t22

Financial Project Number(s):
(item-segment-phase-sequence)

442505-1-94-23

Fund(s): DDR,DPTO FLAIR Category:

Object Code:
Org. Code:
Vendor Number:
Amendment No.:

08871 9

751000Work Activity Code/Function :

Federal Number/Federal Award
ldentification Number (FAIN)- Transit only:
Federal Award Date:
SAM/UEl Number:

215

Contract Number:
CFDA Number:
CFDA Title:
CSFA Number:
CSFA Title:

G2070

55022020228
vF596oOO451 ol 3
1

N/A
N/A
55.004
Aviation Grant Program

THIS AMENDMENT TO THE PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION GRANT AGREEMENT ("Amendment") is made and entered
into by and between the State of Florida, Department of Transportation
("Department"), and City of Williston, ("Agency"),collectively referred to as the "Parties."

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Department and the Agency on 1011912021 (date original Agreement entered) entered into a Public
Transportation G rant Ag reement ("Ag reement").

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement on the terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants in this Amendment, the Agreement is amended as
follows:

1. Amendment Description. The project is amended Desiqn & Construction of a New General Aviation
Terminal Buildinq at Williston Municipal Airport-Additional Fundinq Added. The municipalitv is eliqible for and
has requested a Rural Economic Develooment lnitiative (REDI) waiver zursuant to Florida Statute 288.0656.

2. Program Area. For identification purposes only, this Agreement is implemented as part of the Department
program area selected below (select all programs that apply):

Aviation
Seaports
Transit
lntermodal
Rail Crossing Closure
Match to Direct Federal Funding (Aviation or Transit)

(Note: Section 15 and Exhibit G do not apply to federally matched funding)
Other

3. Exhibits. The following Exhibits are updated, attached, and incorporated into this Agreement:
X Exhibit A: Project Description and Responsibilities

X Exhibit B: Schedule of FinancialAssistance
*Exhibit B1 : Deferred Reimbursement Financial Provisions
.Exhibit 82: Advance Payment Financial Provisions
*Exhibit C: Terms and Conditions of Construction

X Exhibit D:Agency Resolution
Exhibit E: Program Specific Terms and Conditions
Exhibit F: Contract Payment Requirements

X *Exhibit G: Financial Assistance (Single Audit Act)

X

Page 1 of 7



STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
AMENDMENT TO THE PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION

GRANT AGREEMENT

Fom 725.000-03
STRATEGIC

DEVELOPMENT
occ 01122

*Exhibit H: Audit Requirements for Awards of Federal Financial Assistance
*Additional Exhibit(s):

4. Project Cost.
The estimated total cost of the Project is X increased/ _ decreased by $2,167.786 bringing the revised total
cost of the project to $2,250.000.

The Department's participation is X increased/ _ decreased by $2,167,786. The Department agrees to
participate in the Project cost up to the maximum amount of $2.250,000, and, additionally the Department's
participation in the Project shall not exceed 100.00% of the total eligible cost of the Project.

Except as modified, amended, or changed by this Amendment, all of the terms and conditions of the Agreement and any
amendments thereto shall remain in full force and effect.

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Amendment on the day and year written above

AGENCY City of Williston STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Name:
Title:

Name:James M. Kniqht. P.E.
Title: Urban Planninq and ModalAdministrator

STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

LegalReview:
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STATE OF FLORIOA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS

Fom 725.000.02
STRATEGIC

DEVELOPMENT
oGc 03/22

EXHIBIT A

Project Description and Responsibilities

A. Project Description (description of Agency's project to provide context, description of project components funded
via this Agreement (if not the entire project)): Design & Construct New General Aviation Terminal Building

B. Project Location (limits, city, county, map): Williston MunicipalAirport/Williston, FL/Levy

G. Project Scope (allowable costs: describe project components, improvement type/service type, approximate
timeline, project schedule, project size): As required by 215.971, F.S., this scope of work includes but is not limited to
consultant and design fees, survey and geotechnical costs, permitting, construction inspection and material testing
costs, mobilization and demobilization, maintenance of traffic, erosion control, demolition, pavement (access
roadways, parking lots, and sidewalks), drainage, utilities, primary and back-up power supplies, building (foundation,
structure, roof, MEP, drainage, and fire prevention and protection), pavement marking, lighting and signage, fencing
and gates, landscaping (including outdoor lighting), and indoor/outdoor security systems, including all materials,
equipment, labor, and incidentals required to complete the building project. The Sponsor will comply with Aviation
Program Assurances.

D. Deliverable(s): Design & Construct New GeneralAviation Terminal Building

The project scope identifies the ultimate project deliverables. Deliverables for requisition, payment and invoice
purposes will be the incremental progress made toward completion of project scope elements. Supporting
documentation will be quantifiable, measurable, and verifiable, to allow for a determination of the amount of
incremental progress that has been made, and provide evidence that the payment requested is commensurate with
the accomplished incremental progress and costs incurred by the Agency.

E. Unallowable Costs (including but not limited to):

F. Transit Operating Grant Requirements (Transit Only):

Transit Operating Grants billed as an operational subsidy will require an expenditure detail report from the Agency that
matches the invoice period. The expenditure detail, along with the progress report, will be the required deliverables for
Transit Operating Grants. Operating grants may be issued for a term not to exceed three years from execution. The
original grant agreement will include funding for year one. Funding for years two and three will be added by
amendment as long as the grantee has submitted all invoices on schedule and the project deliverables for the year
have been met.
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STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS

Form 725.000-02
STRATEGIC

DEVELOPMENT
occ 03122

EXHIBIT B

Schedule of Financial Assistance

FUNDS AWARDED TO THE AGENCY AND REQUIRED MATCHING FUNDS PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT
CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING:

A. Fund Type and FiscalYear:

B. Estimate of Project Gosts by Grant Phase:

*Shifting items between these grant phases requires execution of an Amendment to the Public Transportation Grant
Agreement.

BUDGET/COST ANALYSIS CERTIFICATION AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 216.3475, FLORIDA STATUTES:

I certify that the cost for each line item budget category (grant phase) has been evaluated and determined to be
allowable, reasonable, and necessary as required by Section 216.3475, Florida Statutes. Documentation is on file
evidencing the methodology used and the conclusions reached.

Donna Whitney

Financial
Management

Number

Fund
Type

FLAIR
Category

State
Fiscal
Year

Object
Code

CSFA/
CFDA

Number

CSFA/CFDA Title or
Funding Source

Description

Funding
Amount

442505-1-94-23

442505-1-94-23

442505-1-94-23

DDR

DDR

DPTO

088719

08871 9

088719

2022

2023

2023

751 000

75'1000

751 000

55.004

55.004

55.004

Aviation Grant Program

Aviation Grant Program

Aviation Grant Proqram

$82,214.00

$2,150,000.00

$17.786.00

Total Financial Assistance $2,250.000.00

Phases* State Local Federal Totals State
%

Local
otto

Federal
of

Land Acquisition $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Planning $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0-00 0.00 0.00

Environmental/Desig n/Construction $2,250,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,250,000.00 100.00 0.00 0.00

Capital EquipmenV Preventative
Maintenance

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Match to Direct Federal Funding $o.oo $o.oo $0.00 $0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Mobility Management
(Transit Onlv)

$o.oo $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Iofals $2.250.000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2.250.000.00

Department Grant Manager Name

Signature Date
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STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

PUBLIG TRANSPORTATION
GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT D

AGENCY RESOLUTION

PLEASE SEE ATTACHED

Fom ?25-000-02
STRATEGIC

DEVELOPMENT
occ 03/22
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STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
GRANT AGREEMENT EXHIBITS

Fom 725-000.02
STRATEGIC

DEVELOPMENT
occ 03/22

EXHIBIT G

AUDIT REQUIREMENTS FOR AWARDS OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

THE STATE RESOURCES AWARDED PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING:

SUBJECT TO SECTION 215.97, FLORIDA STATUTES:-

Awarding Agency:
State Project Title:

CSFA Number:
*Award Amount:

Florida Department of Transportation
Aviation Grant Program
55.004

$2,250,000

*The award amount may change with amendments

Specific project information for CSFA Number 55.004 is provided at: https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/searchCataloq.aspx

COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO STATE RESOURCES AWARDED PURSUANT TO THIS
AGREEMENT:

State Project Compliance Requirements for CSFA Number 55.004 are provided at:
https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/searchCompliance.aspx

The State Projects Compliance Supplement is provided at: https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/compliance.aspx
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Date: 0810212022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

RESOLUTION 2022.50:

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTONO FLORIDA, APPROVING THE AMENDMENT TO THE
SOLID WASTE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR WASTE HAULING
SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA AND GFL
SOLID WASTE SOUTHEAST, LLC.; AUTHORIZING APPROPRIATE
PARTIES TO SIGN ANY DOCUMENTS REQUIRED TO EXECUTE SUCH
AMENDMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

REQUESTED BY: JACKIE GORMAN CITY MANAGER
PREPARED BY: KIERSTEN BALLOU CITY ATTORNEY

FISCAL IMPACTS: Temporary rate increase to customer bills for fuel cost.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends approval.

ATTACHMENTS:

CONTRACT XX RESOLUTION 2022-50 MAP

LEASE XX OTHERDOCUMENTS

COUNCIL ACTION:

APPROVED

DENIED



RESOLUTION NUMBER 2022.50

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE AMENDMENT TO THE
SOLID WASTE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR WASTE IIAULING
SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA AND GFL
SOLID WASTE SOUTHEAST, LLC.; AUTHORIZING APPROPRIATE
PARTIES TO SIGN ANY DOCUMENTS REQUIRED TO EXECUTE SUCH
AMENDMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, on May 18, 2O2I, the parties entered into the Agreement whereby GFL
Solid Waste Southeast, LLC agreed to provide waste hauling services for the City
(hereinafter the "Agreement");

WHEREAS, due to the current economic situation, GFL Solid Waste Southeast, LLC
indicates that they cannot maintain the current fuel surcharge and rates related
thereto;

WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend this contract to provide for an amendment of
the Agreement as it relates to the fuel surcharge and rates related thereto to be paid
by the City to GFL Solid Waste Southeast, LLC;

WHEREAS, the Williston Council President is an appropriate party to execute
documents related to such Amendment;

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the City's best interest to
aluthorize the City Council President to execute this Amendment, an unexecuted copy
of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Williston to execute the Amendment.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE rT RESOLVED By THE CrTy COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The above recitals are all true and accurate and are hereby incorporated
herein and made a part of this resolution.

Section 2. The City Council hereby approves the Amendment, attached hereto and
incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

Section 3. The City Council President is hereby authorized to execute on behalf of the
City such documents as are required to enter the Amendment.

Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the City Council this 2"a day of August, 2022.



Attest, By the Clerk of the
City Council of the
City of Williston Florida:

Latricia Wright, City Clerk

crTY oF WILLISTON, FLORTDA

Debra Jones, City Council President

Approved as to Form and Legality:

S. Scott Walker, City Attorney or
Kiersten N. Ballou, City Attorney

BY:



AMENDMENT TO THE
SOLID WASTE F'RANCHISE AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA AtlD
GFL SOLID WASTE SOUTHEAST, LLC

THIS AMENDMENT is made and entered into this 2d day of August, 2022by and between:

The City of Williston, a municipal corporation established in the State of Florida located at 50
North West Main Street, Williston, Florida 32696 (the "City"); and

GFL Solid Waste Southeast, LLC, a North Carolina Limited Liability Company with offices
located at5002 SW.41st Blvd, Gainesville, FI.32608 (the "Contractor")

WHEREAS, on May 18, 2027, the parties entered into a Solid Waste Franchise Agreement
whereby the Contractor agreed to provide waste hauling services for the City (hereinafter the
"Agreement");

WHEREAS, due to the current economic situation, maintaining the current fuel surcharge would
create a financial hardship for the Contractor; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend this contract to provide for an amendment of the
Agreement as it relates to the fuel surcharge to be paid by the City to the Contractor;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, and other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the
parties hereto agree to amend the Agreement as follows:

l. RECITALS. The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference are
incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement.

2. Section 10: is hereby amended to include a sub-section (c) which shall read as follows:
"Temporary Rate Increase for Fuel Costs. Beginning August 1,2022, due to the currently
high cost of fuel, the rates currently being paid by the City to the Contractor under Exhibit
"A", together with any increases previously effectuated under Section 10.2 of the
Agreement, shall be initially increased by 10% for both residential and commercial services
until the price of fuel drops below the established base fuel rate. The base fuel rate is
established at $3.90 per gallon. The aforementioned 10o% increase shall be evaluated on a
semi-annual basis with rate adjustments being effectuated should the fuel costs drop below
the base fuel rate (based on the EIA Lower Atlantic report) as outlined herein: Fuel costs
between $3.71 and $3.90 per gallon, rates are reduced by 2%; Fuel costs between $3.51
and $3.70 per gallon, rates are reduced by an additional2%o; Fuel costs between $3.31 and
$3.50 per gallon, rates are reduced by an additional 3o/o;Fwl costs between $3.11 and
$3.30 per gallon, rates are reduced by an additional3o/o.

3. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Amendment shall be effective onthe 1't day of Augtst,2022.

4. AFFIRMATION OF THE MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT. With the sole exception
of the amendment set forth in Section 10 of this Amendment, the Agreement is hereby
affirmed and continues to constitute a valid and binding agreement between the parties.



IN WITNESS WHEREOtr', the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be duly executed
as of the date and year first above written.

crTY oF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

TITLE:

ATTEST:

GFL SOLrD WASTE SOUTHEAST, LLC

TITLE

ATTEST:

BY

BY



Date: August 2,2022

COUNCIL A ITEM

TOPIC: 504 HANDICAP ACCESSIBILITY PLAN

REQUESTED BY: LAURA JONES, CITY PLANNER

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION:

"Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 provides that no qualified disabled person shall,
solely on the basis of handicap, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity funded in whole or in part with Federal
financial assistance". Fred Fox Enterprises assisted the City in making sure we are in compliance
as we apply for and receive funding from the US Department of Economic Opportunity through
CDBG Grants.

LEGAL REVIEW: Not required

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 2022-52

FISCAL IMPACTS: None

ATTACHMENTS:

2022 504 Transition Plan
2022 504 Self Evaluation Plan
2022 504 Grievance Procedure
2l22Resolution for 504 Plan

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED DISAPPROVED

Page I ofl



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-52

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA UPDATING
COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITION ACT OF 1973,
ADOPTING A HANDICAP ACCESSIBILITY SELF EVALUATION PLAN,
ADOPTING A TRANSITION PLAN FOR IIANDICAP ACCESSIBILITY AND
ADOPTING A SECTION 504 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE.

WHEREAS' The City of Williston desires to comply with the Section 504 Handicap
Accessibility Requirements of the Community Development Block Grant programs and
have all publicly accessible City owned facilities made handicap accessible; and

WHEREAS, The City of Williston has completed a review of City-owned facilities
accessible to the public for ADA handicap compliance; and

WHEREAS, The City of Williston desires to make all City-owned public facilities
accessible to Handicap individuals, and

WHEREAS, The City of Williston is establishing a Complaint and Grievance Procedure
to process any complaints including those relating to handicap accessibility, the treatment
of handicapped individuals and to elimination discrimination against any person who: has
a physical or mental impairment which substantially limits one or more major life
activities, has a record of such impairment , and/or is regarded as having such an
impairment.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council as follows

That the City of Williston hereby adopts the following24 CFR Part 8

Transition Plan, and

That the City of Williston hereby adopts the following24 CFR Part 8
Self Evaluation Plan, and

That the City of Williston hereby adopts the following Section 504
Compliance and Grievance Procedure, and

That the City of Williston affirms the City Manager as the person
responsible for implementation of the Plan.

THIS RESOLUTION ADOPTED THIS 2nd DAy OF AUGUST,2022

2.

-t

4

ATTEST:
Latricia Wright, City Clerk

Debra Jones, Council President



Exhibit "A"

24 CFR PART 8
SELF EVALUATION. TRANSITION PLAN

A. List structures (facilities) in which programs and activities are conducted, (Particularly where public meetings are held)
B. Determine if there are barriers to YES or NO

LOCALITY NAME: CITY OF WILLISTON

STRUCTURES
1.

Access
Route

2.

Outside
walks

J

Parking
4.

Curb
cuts

5

Ramps
6.
Ext.

doors

7.

Int.
doors

8.

Elev
9

Lifts
10.

Restroom
11.

Fount-
ains

12.

Warn-
signal

13.

Assem-
areas

t4.
Tele-
phones

NEEDED CHANGES

City Hall
and

Community
Center

No No No No No No No N/A N/A No No No No N/A No Changes Needed

Heritage Park
and Pavilion

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No No N/A N/A No N/A No No N/A

l.Need ADA compliant
parking with signs
2.Need ADA compliant
access route from
parking to venue

John Henry Park No No Yes N/A N/A No N/A N/A N/A Yes N/A No No N/A

l.Need plumbing shields
under bathroom sinks
2.Need ADA compliant
striping and signs on
parking
3. Need ADA compliant
bathroom siens

Williston
Municipal

Airport
No No Yes No No No No N/A N/A Yes N/A No No No

1.Need ADA compliant
parking spaces with
striping and signs
2. Need ADA compliant
bathroom signs

Resolution #: Date Approved; __________-_20D.



Exhibit "A"

24 CFR PART 8
SELF EVALUATION. TRANSITION PLAN LOCALITY NAME: CITY OF WILLISTON

Page#2
A. List structures (facilities) in which programs and activities are conducted. (Particularly where public meetings are held)
B. Determine if there are physical barriers to program participation? YES or NO.

STRUCTURES
l.
Access
Route

2.

Outside
walks

J.

Parking
4.
Curb
cuts

5

Ramps
6.

Ext.
doors

7,

Int.
doors

8

Elev
9
Lifts

10.

Restroom
11.

Fount-
ains

t2.
Warn-
signal

13.

Assem-
areas

t4.
Tele-
phones

NEEDED CHANGES

Cornelius
Williams Park

Yes Yes Yes N/A N/A No No N/A N/A Yes Yes No N/A N/A

1.Need ADA compliant
parking with striping
and sign
2.Need ADA compliant
access route from
parking to venues
3. Need ADA compliant
bathroom signs
4. Need ADA compliant
water fountain

Williston Public
Library No No Yes No No No No N/A N/A No No No No N/A

1.Need ADA compliant
parking with striping
and sign

Police Station
and

Fire Station
No No No No No No Yes N/A N/A Yes No Yes No N/A

1.Need ADA compliant
bathroom signs to
include height
2.Need plumbing shields
under bathroom sinks

3.Need ADA compliant
interior doorknobs
4.Need ADA compliant
grab bars on rear wall
behind commodes

Resolution # Date Approved 2022



C. The schedule for taking steps necessary to make needed changes:

Year 1 -

Heritage Park & Pavilion
1. Install ADA compliant parking to include signs.

John Henry Park
l.Install plumbing shields to exposed plumbing under wall hung sinks
2. Install ADA compliant parking to include striping and signs
3.install ADA compliant bathroom signs at proper height

Williston Municipal Airport
l.lnstall ADA compliant parking space signs and striping
2. Install ADA compliant bathroom signs at proper height

Cornelius Williams Park
1. Install ADA compliant bathroom signs at proper height

Williston Public Library
1. Need ADA compliant parking with stripping and sign

Police Station and Fire Station
l. Install ADA compliant bathroom signs at proper height
2.Install plumbing shields to exposed plumbing under wall hung sinks
3.Install ADA compliant interior doorknobs
4. Install ADA compliant grab bars on rear walls behind commodes

Exhibit "A"

24 CFR PART 8
SELF EVALUATION. TRANSITION PLAN

Page #3
LOCALITY NAME: CITY OF WILLISTON

Resolution # Date Approved: 2022



D. The schedule for taking steps necessary to make needed changes:

Year 2 -
Heritage Park & Pavilion
l.Install ADA compliant access route from ADA Parking Area to Venue

Cornelius Williams Park
l. Install ADA compliant hard surface parking area to include striping and sign
2. Install ADA compliant access route from ADA Parkingarcato Venues
3. Install ADA compliant water fountain

Exhibit "A"

24 CFR PART 8
SELF EVALUATION - TRANSITION PLAN

Page#4
LOCALITY NAME: CITY OF WILLISTON

Resolution #: Date Approved: __________-_20D.



A) Program and Activities Conducted:

PROGRAMS

Exhibit'6B"

CITY OF WILLISTON
24 CFR PART 8

SELF EVALUATION PLAN

PURPOSE

CDBG To make infrastructure improvements to City owned facilities

B) The Policies and Practices that govern the above programs and activities

1) Outreach and Communications
2) Complaint Procedures
3) Eligibility and Admission Criteria
4) Employment Policy
5) Physical Accommodations
6) Fair Housing Ordinance

C) Person responsible for Evaluation:

City Manager

D) Do written policies or practices limit the participation of individuals with handicaps?

Needed Changes
l) Notices (written)
2) Complaint Procedures
3) Eligibility Policy
4) Employment Policy
5) Transportation
6) Telephone Communications (TDD's)
7) Interpreters/Readers
8) Use of Contractors
9) Audio-Visual Preservations

l0) Automated Electronic Equipment
I 1) Emergency Evacuation
12)Fair Housing

Y-
Y-
Y-
Y-
Y-
Y-
Y-
Y-
Y-
Y-
Y-
Y

NA
N_X
N_X_
N_X
N_L
N_X
N_X
N_X
N_X_
N_X
N_X
N_X_

E) Ways handicapped persons and other interested persons have participated in the Self Evaluation Plan.

City employees with the City of Williston who are familiar with all the City owned Public Access
Facilities participated in the Self Evaluation process.

F) Recipients that employ 15 or more employees must maintain on file and make the information available to
the public upon request. File must be kept for at least six (6) years.

The City of Williston employs over l5 employees. This information will be available to the public
upon request.



Exhibit 66B"

CITY OF'WILLISTON

TRANSITION PLAN
SCHEDULE OF IMPROVEMENTS

CHANGES TO BE MADE ACCORDING TO FISCAL YEAR BUDGET

Year I -

Heritage Park & Pavilion
1. Install ADA compliant parking to include signs.

John Henry Park
l.Install plumbing shields to exposed plumbing under wall hung sinks
2. Install ADA compliant parking to include striping and signs
3.install ADA compliant bathroom signs at proper height

Williston Municipal Airport
l'lnstall ADA compliant parking space signs and striping
2. Install ADA compliant bathroom signs at proper height

Cornelius Williams Park
1. Install ADA compliant bathroom signs at proper height

Williston Public Library
1. Need ADA compliant parking with stripping and sign

Police Station and Fire Station
1. Install ADA compliant bathroom signs at proper height
2.Install plumbing shields to exposed plumbing under wall hung sinks
3.Install ADA compliant interior doorknobs
4. Install ADA compliant grab bars on rear walls behind commodes

Year 2 -
Heritage Park & Pavilion
l.Install ADA compliant access route from ADA Parking Area to Venue

Cornelius Williams Park
1. Install ADA compliant hard surface parking areato include striping and sign
2. Install ADA compliant access route from ADA Parking areato Venues
3. Install ADA compliant water fountain



EXHIBIT C

CITY OF WTLLTSTON, FLORIDA

SECTION 504 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 provides that no qualified disabled person shall,
solely on the basis of handicap, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity funded in whole or in part with Federal
financial assistance. The City of Williston has completed its Section 504 Self Evaluation Guide and its
Transition Plan which details the modifications/corrective actions needed to allow handicap
accessibility relative to the City's public buildings and facilities. The Self Evaluation Guide and
Transition Plan are on file in the Citv Manager's office in the City of Williston, City Hall and are
available for public review and inspection, upon request.

In an effort to comply with all the provisions as set forth in Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973, The City of Williston herein establishes the following Grievance Procedure by passage of
Resolution No. dated

L The City of Williston, Florida has completed its Section 504 Self Evaluation Guide and has

determined to what extent its public facilities, employment practices, communications system,
programs, and services are accessible to handicapped individuals.

2. The City of Williston, Florida has appointed its City Manager as its Section 504 Coordinator.
The Section 504 Coordinator shall be responsible for the City's overall compliance with
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and further shall coordinate the implementation
of the Transition Plan with the respective City Departments.

3. It is the Policy of the City of Williston to eliminate discrimination against any person who: has

a physical or mental impairment which substantially limits one or more major life activities, has

a record of such impairment, and/or is regarded as having such an impairment.

4. Any handicappedperson or groups representing handicapped persons that feel that a
grievance is warranted relative to accessibility to handicapped persons in public facilities,
employment practices, communication systems, programs, services, etc. under the direct
control of the City shall submit said grievance in writing to the City Manager's Office

5. The City Manager shall coordinate the response to the grievance with the Section 504
Coordinator and shall issue the City's response within thirty (30) days of receipt of said
grievance. Ifthe person/group feels that his/her complaint has not been sufficiently addressed
by the City Manager, an appeal may be made to the City Council. The City Council shall
render its decision relative to the grievance within thirty (30) days of hearing the complaint.
At any point, the aggrieved may register a complaint with the Department of Economic
Opportunity, 107 East Madison Street-MSC 400, Tallahassee, Florida32399-2100 the CDBG
overseeing agency in place at the time of the complaint.

6. All complaints registered at the local level shall have a response from the City Council or Citv
Manaser within sixty (60) days of the lodging of the complaint and/or appeal. In the event the
aggrieved has exhausted all appeals without a decision satisfactory to himself/herself, he/she
may pursue other legal channels in an attempt to achieve satisfaction.

Resolution #: Date Approved



EXHIBIT C

7. A file of all "written" grievances and/or complaints and the City's response to said
grievance/complaint shall be maintained and available for public inspection upon request.

Resolution #: Date Approved



Date: 08102/2022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: lsr Reading Ordinance 2022-700

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLORIDA, AMENDING THE CITY CHARTER TO CHANGE THE DATES OF
CITY ELECTIONS AI\D TO CHANGE TERMS OF OFFICE NECESSITATED BY
SUCH CHANGE IN THE ELECTION DATES; AMENDING SECTIONS 2.02,4.02,
AND 4.03 OF THE CITY CHARTER; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

REQUESTED BY: ATTORNEY KIERSTEN BALLOU
PREPARED BY: ATTORNEY KIERSTEN BALLOU

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION: CHANGING ELECTION DATES AND TERMS OF
OFFICE AT THE REQUEST OF THE LE\TY COUNTY SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS.

LEGAL REVIEW:

FISCAL IMPACTS: THE CITY OF WILLISTON WILL BE ABLE TO
USE THE SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS, ELECTION EQUIPMENT
WITHOUT BEING CHARGED AN ADDITIONAL COST TO LOCATE
EQUIPMENT FOR THE CITY TO USE DURING ELECTION
PERIOD.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve

ATTACHMENTS:

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED



ORDINANCE NUMBER 2022-7 OO

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF WILTISTON, FLORIDA,
AMENDING THE CITY CHARTER TO CHANGE THE DATES OF CITY ELECTIONS
AND TO CHANGE TERMS OF OFFICE NECESSITATED BY SUCH CHANGE IN THE
ELECTION DATES; AMENDING SECTIONS 2.02, 4.O2, AND 4.03 OF THE CITY
CHARTER; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Williston, Florida, (the "City"), is a municipality organized
and exiting under the laws of the State of Florida; and

WHEREAS, Section L66.031, Florida Statutes, provides for a methodology of
Charter amendments, which normally require a referendum vote; and

WHEREAS, Section L66.027, Florida Statutes, provides that an amendment
changing the election dates and changing terms of office necessitated by such change in
election dates may be accomplished without a referendum vote of the elector of the City;
and

WHEREAS, the present City Charter provides that the City's general election shall
be held on the first Tuesday in April each year; and

WHEREAS, based on the recommendation of the Supervisor of Elections and City
staff and its own independent evaluation, the City Council of the City desires to amend its
Charter, pursuant to Section 100.3605, Florida Statutes, to change the City election dates
to first Tuesday in April each year, and to change the terms of office as necessitated by the
change in election dates; and

WHEREAS, the amended language for each section of the City Charter impacted by
this Ordinance is attached as "Exhibit A", where deleted words are shown as s+ruek and
added words as shown as underlined.

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City that such amendments to the City
Charter be made.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORIDA:

Section 1. The above recitals are true and accurate and are hereby incorporated
herein and made a part of this ordinance.

Section 2. The attached amended language of sections 2.02, 4.02, and 4.03 of the
City Charter ("Exhibit A") is hereby adopted by the City of Williston, Florida.

Section 3. The provisions of this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the
City Charter of the City of Williston, Florida; that the sections of this ordinance may be
renumbered or re-lettered and that the word "ordinance" may be changed to "section",
"article" or other appropriate designation to accomplish such intention.
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Section 4. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are,
to the extent they conflict with this ordinance, repealed.

Section 5. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage.

Section 6. Should the provisions of this ordinance be declared to be severable and
if any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance shall for any reason be held to
be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining
sections, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance but they shall remain in effec!
it being the legislative intent that this ordinance shall remain notwithstanding the
invalidity of any part.

PASSED this _ day of 2022, on the first reading by a vote of _.

PASsEDANDADoPTEDthisdayof-2022,onsecondreading
by a vote of _.

Attest CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

Latricia Wright, City Clerk Debra fones, Council President

Approved: Approved as to legal form and content

Charles Goodman, City Mayor S. Scott Walker, City Attorney
Kiersten N. Ballou, City Attorney
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'EXHIBIT A"

Section 2.O2. - Election and terms.

Candidates for city €€un€i+ma+ councilmember shall file and qualify in one (1) of
five (5) groups, designated A,B, C, D, and E. One (1) eeuneilman councilmember in
Group A, one (1) in Group B and one (1) in Group C shall be elected for a term of
two (2) years in 1979 and biennially thereafter; and one (1) eeuneilman
councilmember in Group D and one in E shall be elected for a term of two (2) years
in 1980 and biennially thereafter. Each present eeuneilman councilmember shall
hold office for the term for which hffis they were elected. The mayor of the city
shall hold office for a term of two (2) years beginning on the second Tuesday in
Ap+it May after his their election. The office of mayor shall be filled at the general
election to be held on the first Tuesday in M+reh April in even-numbered years.
The current Mayor and councilmembers shall continue to hold office and serve
until the installation of the new Mayor or councilmember in May.

Section 4.O2. - Date; runoff election.

No person shall be elected to the office of mayor of the City of Williston or to the
office of city councilman who shall not have received a majority of the qualified
votes cast at any election for such office.

Regular municipal elections as provided in Article II of the Charter shall be held on
the first Tuesday in Ma+eh April. If at any regular election no candidate in any
group receives a majority of votes, or if no candidate for mayor receives a majority
of the votes cast for mayor, there shall be a runoff election for all such groups and
for mayor, as applicable, which shall be held upon the fourth Tuesday following
the regular election, at which election the two candidates within such groups, and
for mayor, if applicable, receiving the greatest number of votes at the regular
election shall be voted upon and the one receiving the majority of votes in the
runoff election shall be elected to office.

Section 4.03. - Taking office.

The mayor shall take his office on the second Tuesday of Ap+il May following his
election. The members of the council elected shall take office on the second
Tuesday in Ap+il May of the year in which they are elected. Upon their installation
in office, each shall take an oath as prescribed by state law for the installation of
state officials.


